
 

Notice of Regular Meeting of the 
Montrose Recreation District (MRD) Board of Directors 

Thursday, September 21, at 11:30am  
Montrose Community Recreation Center  

16350 Woodgate Road  
Montrose CO 81401 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call 

II. Open Forum: Call for Public Comment (limit of 3 minutes per person) 

III. Staff Recognition: 
a. Anniversaries: Wade Ploussard, 16 years.  Mari Steinbach, 4 years; Astro Ball, 1 year.  
b. New Employee Introduction/Announcement: Quentin Timmerman, Maintenance Technician, Laysa 

Quijana, Customer Service Representative Lead. 
c. Employee Awards:  

i. Core Staff of the Month   
ii. Part time Staff of the Month 

IV. Receipt of Annual Audit 
a. Don Moreland, CPA presentation 

V. Staff Report 
a. Recreation Programs – Adults (Matt, Cindy, Jarrod) 

VI. Committee Updates and Assignments 
a. Exec. Committee of Board (Board: Christina, Alli. Staff: Mari, Jeremy) 
b. Administrative (Board: Alli, Barb. Staff Mari, Jeremy, Debby, Lisa) 
c. Foundation (Board: Megan, Barb.  Staff: Mari, Cindy, Astro, Debby)  
d. Growth (Board: Ken, Suzi.  Staff:  Mari, Liz, Justin, Miguel) 
e. Finance (Board: Paul, Alli.  Staff:  Mari, Jeremy)  
f. MURA (Board: Alli) 

VII. Executive Director’s Update  

VIII. Approval of BOD Meeting Minutes  
a.  Regular Meeting of the Board 08.24.2023 
b. Joint meeting of the Growth & Finance Committees 08.22.2023 

IX. Adjourn 
 
 

Next BOD Regular Meeting 
 October 26 at 11:30am 

Flex Rec 
1309 Mayfly Drive  

Montrose CO 81401 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND 
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

December 31, 2022 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

Independent Audi tor 1 s Report ..................................... . 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Statement of Net Position ...................................... . 

Statement of Activities ........................................ . 

Fund Financial Statements 

Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds ............................. . 

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet 
to the Statement of Net Position .............................. . 

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in 
Fund Balances - Governmental Funds ............................ . 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expend~tures and 
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the 

Statement of Activities ...................................... . 

Notes to Financial Statements .................................... . 

Required Supplementary Information 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund ................... . 

Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Conservation Trust Fund ........ . 

Schedule of·Activity - Net Pension Liability ................... . 

Schedule of Activity - Employer Pension Contribution ........... . 

Schedule of Activity - Net OPEB Liability ...................... . 

Schedule of Activity - Employer OPEB Contribution .............. . 

Supplementary Information 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in F_und Balance -

PAGE NO. 

1 

4 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

58 

65 

66 

67 

68 

69 

Budget and Actual - Sales Tax Fund............................. 70 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Capital Improvement Fund................... 71 

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance -
Budget and Actual - Capital Reserve Fund....................... 72 



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 



DONALD R. MORELAND &ASSOCIATES, P.C. 
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

Board of Directors 
Montrose Recreation District 
Montrose, Colorado 81401 

Opinion 

INDEPENDENT AUD.I TOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities 
and each major fund of.the Montrose Recreation District, as of and for the year ended 
December 31, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements which 
collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the 
table of contents. 

In our opinion, based on our audit, the financial statements referred to above 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Montrose 
Recreation District as of December 31, 2022, and the respective changes in financial 
position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of }Unerica (GAP~S). Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of Montrose 
Recreation District, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance 
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the 
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether 
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial 
doubt about Montrose Recreation District's ability to continue as a going concern for 
twelve months l:;)eyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Telephone (970) 249-3424 Facsimile (970) 249-3425 

1675 East Niagara Road * Montrose, Colorado 81401 



DONALD R. MORELAND & ASSOCIATES, P.C. CERTIFIED PUBLICACOUNTANTS 

Board of Directors 
Montrose Recreation District 
Page Tv\10 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about \l\1hether the financial 
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is 
not a guararn:ee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted 
auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement 1"1hen it exists. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements 
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in 
the aggregate, they would influence the judgement made by a reasonable user based on 
these financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we: 

• 

• 

Exercise professional 
the audit. 

Identify and assess 
statements, whether 
procedures responsive 
text basis, evidence 
statements. 

judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit 
to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a 
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Montrose 
Recreation District's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is 
expressed. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the 
overall presentatioD of the financial statements. 

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered 
in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Montrose Recreation's 
ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time. 

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, 
and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit. 

2 



DONALD R. MORELAND & ASSOCIATES, P.C. CERTIFIED PUBUCACOUNTANTS 

Board of Directors 
Montrose Recreation District 
Page Three 

Report on Summarized Comparative Information 

We have previously audited the Montrose Recreation District's 2021 financial 
statements, and we expressed an unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial 
statements in our report dated August 14, 2023. In our opinion, the summarized 
comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended December 31, 
2020 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements 
from which it has been derived. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that 
the management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information and 
Schedule of P~cti vi ty - Net Pension Liability and Schedule of Activity - Employer 
Pension Contribution on pages 4 through 10, and pages 55 through 65 be presented to 
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of 
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards 
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing 
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, eco~omic, or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary 
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of P..merica, which consi.sted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with 
management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or· 
provide any assurance. 

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial 
statements that collectively comprise the Montrose Recreation District's basic 
financial statements. The supplementary information schedule of revenues, 
expenditures and changes in fund balance - budget and actual for the Sales Tax ·Fund, 
Capital Improvement Fund and Capital Reserve Fund are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic 
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures 
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional·· 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of P...merica. In our opinion; based on our audit, the information is fairly 
stated, in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole. • 

t'&71~}___ f( 11~ .. ~~ {,(;_ 
Montrose, Colorado 
August 14, 2023 

3 



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



A management of 
D st::::-.:..ct's =inane 
~ nanc.:..a.i activit 

Management's Discussion and Analysis 

he Montrose Rec::::-eat.:..on n.:..str.:..ct, we o££e:::- readers 0£ the 
a:::. statements th:_s narrat.:..ve overv.:..ew and analys.:..s o:': the 
es o:: the D.:..st::::-.:..ct fo:::- the ::isca2. yea:::- ended Dece:r.1.be:::- 3:., 

Financial & Operational Highlights 

2022. 

':'he Montrose Recreati.on Distr.:..ct (MRI:) p::::-ov.:..des v.:..ta.:.., conmun.:..ty-bui.id.:..ng serv.:..ces 
to our cc,mmunity residents by o::::e::::-.:..ng act:_vit.:..es that ::oster acti.ve 1.:..:=esty.::.es, 
soc:.a.::. .:..nteraction and pos.:..tive 2..:..::e sk.:..l.::.s. ~he ::::-esu~t of this service .:..s a 
he a 2. thier cor:tr:luni ty, phys.:..cal2.y, soc.:..a.::.::.y and ·economically, with an over al.!. h:.gher 
qua2..:..ty o:: :.:.£e than i.£ the MRC did not ex.:..st. 

MRC cont.:..nued with .:..t fisca~ auste!"ity .:..n 2022, spend.:..ng S4,~61,568 in i.ts genera~ 
:':und. '?his conpares with 55,378,383 .:..n genera~ funj revenue. As o:: the c~ose ,:,£ the 
year, the o.:..strict has S9,:.43,22.~ in combi.ned ending cash and i.nvestTient balances. 
This conpa:::-es to S7, 844, 5~2 in cornb.:..ned _ending cash and .:..nvestment balances ::or 
2021. 

MRD's assessed valuation was $534,796,696 for 2c2:;_ and S542,394,435 ::or 2022. ~he 
2021 and 2022 mi2.l levy was 5.00. Specific ownersh.:..p tax ar:id the property tax 
generated in 2022 was S3,053,614 compared to S2,475,717 in 2021. 

Montrose 1 s economy continues to improve. ':'his is evidenced by sales tax revenues 
exceeding p=ojections. In 2022, the City of Montrose collected S2,634,532 in sales 
tax £or MRD per the Rec. Center IGA with the c.:..ty. MRD planned for Sl,304,583 
in MRD's 30-year budget presentation, which was used to plan the ::"inances for MRD 
with the CRC online. In 202l, the City of Montrose collected 52,385,625 in sales 
tax foe MRD. MRD had budgeted ,1,856,788. 

Facilities and programs services: 
Service at MRD sites included Ute, McNeil, Hol2.y, the Montrose Conrnunity Recreation 
Center (CRC), the Montrose ?ield House and ?lex Rec which opened in 2022. Service 
at non-MRD ::'acilities included Montrose County School District gyms and Cerise 
Park. In general, the year 2022 experienced strong resurgence from the downturns 
dur.:..ng and ::'ollowing the Covid pandemic, and exceeded pre-pandemic levels. By year 
end, fees collected in 2022 were about 225% of those collected in 2020. The CRC and 
Field House combined noted 220,778 paid visits; the CRC brought 6,4::..3 annual 
members. 327 p:::-ograms and classes were held in the year, serving 38,296 individual 
participants. Hundreds of other progran hours were held as a benefit o:: £acility 
membership which are not included above. Progran scholarship contributions remained 
strong through the fundra:..sing. generated by the Montrose Recreation ?oundation, 
which continu9s to s9:::-ve as th<2 non-profit arr.1 and partner in cor.1plement to the 
MRD. In 2022 the ?oundation cont3..nued in expanding the scholarship progran fund3..ng, 
inc~uding adults for the first time:. Program scholarships accounte:d £or $16,500, 
providing access to 490 ind:.v.:..duals to recreation programs by offsett:..ng program 
::"ees-. 

Human Resources: 
The MRD employed 257 part t.:..me and 27 core t:..me staf::" menbe:=s (full time and 3/4 
tine) who were centrally involved in providing services in the areas of parks and_ 
£aci::..:..ties maintenance:, recreation progranming (youth, adult, fitness/wellness, 
50-, aquatics), custor.1.er serv:..ce, .interna~ suppo:::-t servic9s (accounting, hunan 
resources) and faci::.ities management. Total ?TEs £or the organization were s~ightly 
over 56. 

4 



Capital Development: 
As for capital development, =unds were spent to develop the ?lex Rec site on the 
Colorado Outdoors campus and to continue with irrigation systen improvements at 
McNeil and Ute parks; purchase new maintenance equipment and invest in the 
District's comprehensive master p~an. 

Overview of the Financial Statements. 
This discussion and ana~ysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the 
District's basic financia~ statements. ?he District's basic financia~ statements 
comprise th::ee components: l) government-wide financial statements, 2) ::'und 
financial statements, and 3) notes to the =inancial statements. ?his report a~so 
contains other supplementary in=ormation in addition to the basic financial 
statements. 

Government-wide financial statements. 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a 
broad overview of the District's finances,, in a manner similar to a private-sector 
business. 

?he statement of net position presents information on all of the District's assets 
and liabilities, with the ct.:..fference between the two reporte.d as net position. 
Increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether 
the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents in=ormation showing how the MRD's net position 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are 
reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. ~hus, revenues and expenses are 
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in 
future fiscal periods. 

The government-wide financial statements of the District distinguish only the 
functions of the District that are largely supported by taxes and intergovernmental 
revenues and not from other functions that are intended to recover all or a 
significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges as the District 
does not have any business type activities. The District does recover a large 
portion of direct programming costs. The governmental activities of MRD include 
administrative, park maintenance, concessions, the CRC, recreational programs and 
the Field House. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found· on pages 11 and 12 of this 
report. 

Fund financial statements. 
P.,_ fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The 
District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance 
related legal requirements. P.,_ll of the funds of the District are only in the 
governmental fund category. 

5 



Governmental funds. 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported 
as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for 
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities 
in the government-wide financial statements. Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in 
fund balances provide a· reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between 
governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The District maintains five individual governmental funds. Information is presented 
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for all five 
funds. Although all funds do not meet the criteria of a major fund, the District 
has elected to report all funds as major funds in the governmental fund statements. 

The District adopts an annual appropriated budget for all funds. A budgetary 
comparison statement has been provided for the General Fund, Sales Tax Fund, 
Capital Improvement Fund, Capital Reserve Fund and Conservation Trust Fund to 
demonstrate compliance with the budget as required supplementary information and 
supplementary information in the report. 

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 13 through 
16 of this report. 

Proprietary funds. 
The District currently does not maintain any proprietary funds. Proprietary funds 
are usually accounted for as enterprise funds or internal service funds. Enterprise 
funds would be used to report the same functions presented as business-type 
activities, if the District had any, and internal service funds would be used as an 
accounting device used to accumulate and allocate -costs internally among the 
District's various functions. 

Notes to the financial statements. 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding 
of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The 
notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 17 through 57 of this 
report. 

Other information. 
In addition to the basic financial statements and -accompanying notes, this report 
also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the District's 
budgetary comparisons for the General Fund and Conservation Trust Fund. Required 
supplementary information can be found on pages 58 through 68 of this report. It 
also presents other supplementary information concerning the District's Schedules 
of Revenue, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual for the 
Sales Tax Fund, Capital Improvement Fund and Capital Reserve Fund. ·The 
supplementary information can be found on pages 70 through 72 of this report. 

6 



Government-wide Financial ~..nalysis. 
As noted earlier, net positiori may serve over time as a useful indicator of the 
District's financial position. The District's assets and deferred outflows exceeded 
liabiliLies 2nd deferred inflows by $5,387,843 at the close of the )'ear 2022. This 
compares 1,dth $5, 9241 474 from the previous year and constitutes a decrease of 
$536,631 from Lhe prior year's net position. The majority c•f this decrease is the 
result of depreciaLion of the capital assets and pension and OPEB plan expenses. 

A substantial portion of the District's net assets reflects its investment in the 
capital assets (e.g. land, land improvements, buildings, C•Jmrnuni ty Recreation 
Center, Field House, equipment and vehicles) less any related debc used to acquire 
those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to 
provide recreational activities to citizens; consequently, these assets are noc 
available for future spending. 

Montrose Recreation District's Net Position. 

Governmental Activities 

Current & other assets 
Capital assets 

Total assets 
Deferred outflows 

Deferred pension outflows 
Deferred OPEB outflows 
Total deferred outflows 

Current liabilities 
Noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 
Deferred inflows 

Deferred revenues, property 
taxes 

Deferred revenue, grants 
Deferred pension inflows 
Deferred OPEB inflows 
Total deferred inflows 

Net position: 
Net investment in capital 

assets 
Restricted 
Unrestricted (deficit) 

Total net position 

2022 
$12,437,130 
27,347,568 
39,784,698 

2,041,681 
36,010 

2,077,691 
295,653 

29,531,122 
29,826,775 

2,713,972 

3,582,367 
151,432 

6,447,771 

5,089,301 
5,055,113 

(4,566,571) 
$ 5,587,843 

2021 
11,093,034 
28,072,885 
39,165,919 

1,015,672 
971 

1,016,643 
276,347 

27,606,695 
28,821,913 

2,673,993 
38,506 

3,569,566 
92,981 

6,375,046 

5,139,694 
4,189,614 

(3,404,834) 
5,924,474 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the District is able to report positive 
balances in two of three categories of net position. The District was able to 
report positive balances in two of three categories of net position for the prior 
fiscal year. 

The restricted portion of the District's net position represents resources that are 
subject to external restrictions on how they may be used. The unrestricted net 
position may be used to meet the District's ongoing obligations to citizens and 
creditors. 

7 



Montrose Recreation District's Changes in Net Position. 

Governmental Activities 

~Tc1gram revenues: 
Fees and charges 

f,::,r recreational programs 
Operating grants and contributions 
CapiLal grants and contributions 

General revenues: 
Taxes: 

Property and other taxes 
Sales and use taxes 
Earnings on investments 

Total revenue 
E:,-:penses: 

Administrative 
Park maintenance 
Concessions 
Marketing 
Community Recreation Center 
Programs 
Field House 
Flex Rec 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total expenses 
Increase (decrease) in net position 
Net position - January 1st 
Net position - December 31st 

Financial Analysis of the District's Funds. 

2022 

$2,236,949 
12,500 

278,199 

3,053,614 
2,634,532 

184,809 
8,400,603 

4,673,256 
378,762 

4 3, 6 63 
78,444 

1,754,115 
383,187 
290,749 

80,003 
1,055,055 
8,737,234 

(336,601) 
5,924,474 

$4,587,843 

?021 . 

1,678,187 
150,016 
221,364 

2,475,717 
2,385,825 

48,408 
6,959,517 

2,887,549 
247,631 

21,604 
53,528 

2,532,338 
351,515 
339,854 

1,087,685 
7,521,704 

(562,187) 
6,486,661 
5,924,474 

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate 
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. 

Governmental funds. 
The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near
term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is 
useful in assessing the District's financing requirements. In particular, 
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the District's net 
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 

8 



As of the end of the current,. fiscal year, the District's governmental funds 
reported combined ending fund balances of $9,480,605 an increase of $1,326,024 from 
the prior year. Approximately 47% of the governmental fund balance constitutes 
assigned and unassigned fund balances, which is available for spending at the 
District's discretion. Of the total governmental fund balance none is committed, 
which is fund balance that will be spent for a specific purpose such as capital 
outlay. The remainder of fund balance is restricted to indicate that it is not 
available for new spending because it has already been committed to: 1) emergency 
reserves and 2) repayment of the Community Recreation Center. The general fund is 
the chief operating fund of the District. At the end of the currenc fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of Lhe general fund was $3,145,350 after a General Fund 
transfer of $611,000 to the Capital Improvement Fund. As a measure of the general 
fund's liquidity, it is useful to compare both unassigned fund balance and total 
fund balance to Lotal fund expendicures and transfers. Unassigned fund balance 
represents 70% of total general fund expenditures, while total fund balance 
represents 76% of that same amount. MRD plans to seek to retain these similar 
percentages to ensure continued strong financial health. This was especially 
important for 2016 through 2020 since the operational revenue and operational 
expense of the Community Recreation Center and the Field House were still new 
enterprises. Educated forecasts have been completed, yet they are still forecasts. 
This is one reason for continuing to have a healthy unassig~ed fund balance as a 
percent of general fund expense. 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights. 
The final General Fund budget for fiscal year 2022 was $4,983,614. This was an 
increase of $1,111,662 from the previous fiscal year. The actual expenditures and 
transfers for the General Fund were $5,072,568, which included a $611,000 transfer 
to the Capital Improvement Fund. 

Capital Assets. 
The District's investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of 
December 31, 2022, amounts to $27,347,568 (net of accumulated depreciation). This 
investment in capital assets includes land, land improvements, buildings and 
improvements, field house, infrastructure, equipment, vehicles and the Community 
Recreation Center. Certain investments in land are subject to deed restrictions 
which limits their use and/or disposition. 

Montrose Recreation District's Capital Assets. 
(net of depreciation) 

Land 

Governmental Activities 
2022 

Improvements other than buildings 
Buildings and improvements 

$ 967,155 
1,954,607 

23,358,935 
834,315 

3,755 
186,039 

42,762 

Field house 
Infrastructure 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

Total $27,347,568 

2021 . 
967,155 

2,044,341 
24,038,425 

913,327 
7,174 

43,297 
59,166 

?8, 072, 885 

Additional information on the District 1 s capital assets can be found in noLe 4 on 
page 28 of this report. 

9 



Long-Term Debt. 
At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had $21,820,000 Certificates of 
Participation outstanding. Payments on Certificates of Participation are subject LO 
annual appropriation in a lease purchase agreemenL. Therefore, Certificates of 
Participatic,n do not constitute long-term debt. This was the main method of 
financing- the construction of the Community Recreation Center and the renovation of 
the AquaLic Center into ·an indoor turf Field House. 

Requests for Information. 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Montrose 
Recreation DistriCt's finances for all those with an interest in the District's 
finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in the report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Executive 
Director Mari Steinbach at m2.:ci@rnc,ntr-::,ser-:;-::. :.:-::,rr: or P. 0. Box 63, Montrose, Colorado 
81402. 

10 



GOVERNMENT-WIDE 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



MOnTTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

December 31, 2022 

ASSETS 
Cash 
Investments 
Due from other governments 
Property taxes receivable 
Bond issue costs 
Restricted investments 
Capital assets 

(net of accumulated depreciation) 
Land 
Improvements other ~ban buildings 
Buildings and improvements 
Field house 
Infrastructure 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

Total assets 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 
Deferred pension outflows 
Deferred OPEB outflows 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued interest 
Compensated absences 
Accrued payroll taxes and benefits 
Noncurrent libilities: 

Due within one year 
Certificates of participation 
Net pension liability 
Net OPEB liability 

Total liabilities 

DEFERRED INFLOWS 
Deferred revenue-property taxes 
Deferred pension inflows 
Deferred OPEB inflows 

NET POSITION 
Net investment in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Emergency 
Intergovernmental agreement 

Unrestricted (deficit) 
Total net position 

Governmental 
.~ctiviti es 

160,399 
7,071,690 

502,338 
2,713,972 

77,606 
l,911,125 

967,155 
1,954,607 

23,358,935 
834,315 

3,755 
186,039 

42,762 
39,784,698 

2,041,681 
36,010 

2,077,691 

63,979 
130,706 
100,483 

485 

895,255 
21,lBl,659 

6,879,513 
574,695 

29,826,775 

2,713,972 
3,582,367 

lSl,432 
6,447, 77l 

5,089,301 

258,000 
4,797,113 

(4,556,571} 
5,587,843 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

11 



"' 

MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
For the year ended December 31L 2022 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES: 
Administrative 
Park maintenance 
concessions 
Marketing 
Community Recreation Center 
Programs 
Field House 
Flex Rec 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities 

$ 

$ 

Ex.E_enses 

4,673,256 
378,762 

43,663 
78,444 

1,754,115 
383,187 
290,749 

80,003 
1,055,055 
8,737,234 

Fees and 
Charges for 

Recreational 
Programs 

74,393 

51,876 
16,900 

1,657,801 
271,234' 
164,598 

147 

2,236,949 

General Revenues: 
Taxes 

Property and other taxes 
Sales and use taxes 

Earnings on investments 
Total general revenues 

Program Revenues 

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions 

12,500 

12£500 

Change in net position 

NET POSITION - JANUARY 1 

NET POSITION - DECEMBER 31 

Tl1e notes to the tinancial statements are an integral part ot this statement. 

Capital 
Grants and 

Contributions 

278,199 

278.!.199 

Net (Expense) 
Revenue and 
Changes in 

Net Position 
Governmental 
Activities 

(4,308,164) 

(378,762) 
8,213 

(61,544) 
(96,314) 

(111,953) 
(126,151) 

(79,856) 

(1,055,055) 
(6,209,586) 

3,053,614 
2,634,532 

184.!.809 
5,872,955 

(336,631) 

5,924,474 

$ 5,587,843 



FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



w 

MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

December 31, 2022 

(With comparative totals for December 31, 2021) 

ASSETS 

Cash 

Investments 

Due from other funds 

Due from other governments 

Accounts receivable 

Property taxes receivable 

Investments-restricted 

GENERAL 
$ 32,486 

3,751,998 

32,687 

2,713,972 

TOTAL ASSETS $ 6,531,143 

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable 

Due to other funds 

Compensated absences 

Accrued payroll taxes and benefits 

TOTAL LIABILITES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Deferred revenue-property taxes 

Deferred revenue-grants 

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

FUND BALANCES 
Restricted 

Assigned 

unassigned 
TOTAL FUND BALANCES 

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 

$ 63,979 

248,874 

100,483 

485 

413,821 

2,713,972 

2,713,972 

258,000 

3,145,350 

3,403,350 

RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES $ 6,531,143 

CONSERVATION 

TRUST 
3,500 

274,665 

278,165 

278,165 

278,165 

278,165 

SALES 
TAX 
120,912 

2,295,425 

469,651 

1,911,125 

4,797, 113 

4,797,113 

4,797,113 

4,797,113 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT 

3,501 

4,435 

248,874 

256,810 

256,810 

256,810 

256,810 

CAPITAL 
RESERVE 

745,167 

745,167 

745,167 

745,167 

745,167 

TOTAL 
(MEMORANDUM ONLY) 

2022 

160,399 

7,071,690 

248,874 

502,338 

2,713,972 

1,911,125 

12,608,398 

63,979 

248,874 

100, 4~3 

485 

413,821 

2,713,972 

2,713,972 

5,055,113 

1,280,142 

3,145,350 

9,480,605 

12,608,398 

2021 

129,971 

5,803,446 

462,623 

26,332 

2,673,993 

1,911,125 

11,007,490 

93,810 

4 , 758 

,842 

140,410 

2,673,993 

38,506 

2,712,499 

4,189,614 

1,310,125 

2,654,842 

8,154,581 

11,007,490 



,/ 

J>. 

MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
December 31, 2022 

Total fund balances for governmental funds 

Total net position reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position is 
different because: 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 
and therefore are not reported in the funds. Those assets consist of: 

Land 
Improvements other than buildings, net of $1,651,639 accumulated depreciation 
Buildings and improvements, net of $5,952,721 accumulated depreciation 
Field house, net of $2,788,440 accumulated depreciation 
Infrastructure, net of $92,403 accumulated depreciation 
Equipment, net of $1,078,516 accumulated depreciation 
Vehicles, net of $166,906, accumulated depreciation 

Items related to pensions are considered to be long term items and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Net pension liability 
Deferred pension outflows 
Deferred pension inflows 

Items related to OPEB are considered to be long term items and 
therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Net OPEB liability 
Deferred OPEB outflows 
Deferred OPEB inflows 

Long-term liabilities including bonds and notes payable, capital leases, 
and accrued interest are not due and payable in the current period 
and therefore are not reported in the funds. 

Certificates of participation 
Premium on certificates of participation (to be amortized over life 
of lease} 

Deferred charge for issue costs (to be amortized over life of debt) 
Accrued interest payable 

Total net position of governmental activities 

The notes to the tinancial statements are an integral part ot this statement. 

967,155 
1,954,607 

23,358,935 
834,315 

3,755 
186,039 

42,762 

(6,879,513) 
2,041,681 

(3,582,367) 

(574,695) 
36,010 

(lSl.!.432) 

(21,820,000) 

(256,914) 
77,606 

(130,706) 

, 9,480,605 

27,347,568 

(8,420,199) 

(690,117) 

(22,130,014) 

:;i 5,587,843 



"' 

MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

- GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
For the year ended December 31, 2022 
(With_ comparative totals for the year ended December 31, 2021) 

REVENUES 
Property and other taxes 
Rental and miscellaneous 
concessions 
Community Recreation Center 
Programs 
Field house 
Flex Rec 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Donations 
Interest income 

TOTAL REVENUES 
EXPENDITURES 

CURRENT: 
Administrative 
Park maintenance 
Concessions 
Marketing 
Community Recreation Center 
Programs 
Field house 
Flex Rec 

CAPITAL OUTLAY: 
Administrative 
Park maintenance 
Community Recreation Center 
Field house 
Flex Rec 
Debt service: 

Principal 
Interest 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 
EXCESS (DEFICIT} OF REVENUES 

OVER EXPENDITURES 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) 

Transfers in 
Transfers out 

NET OTHER FINANCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 

FUND BALANCE BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE END OF YEAR 

$ 

GENERAL 
FUND 

3,053,614 
102,006 

51,876 
1,647,088 

271,234 
164,598 

147 

12,500 
1,120 

74.!.200 
5,37~383 

1,784,255 
296,465 
43,663 
78,444 

1,754,115 
190,626 
211,737 

65,082 

2,066 
4,575 
4,799 

25,741 

4,461,568 

916,815 

(611,000) 

(611_.!. 000) 

305,815 

3,097,535 

$ 3,403,350 

CONSERVATION 
TRUST 

215,902 

4.!.499 
220,401 

36,038 
57,906 

181,174 

275,118 

(54_, 717) 

{54,717) 

332.!.882 

278.!.165 

SALES 
TAX 

2,634,532 

92,592 
2, 722..!_124 

2,000 

830,000 
1,078,625 
1,9~625 

816.!.499 

816,499 

3,980,614 

4.!.797,113 

The notes to tt1e tinancial statements are an integral part at tl1is statement. 

CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT 

57,177 

742 

57 .!. 919 

93,297 

13,460 

320,511 

427.!.268 

(36~,349) 

611,000 

611,000 

241,651 

15 .!.159 

256 .!. 810 

CAPITAL 
RESERVE 

4,000 
12 .!. 776 
16,776 

16 .!. 776 

16,776 

728,391 

745,167 

TOTAL 
(MEMORANDUM ONLY) 

2022 

3,053,614 
102,006 

51,876 
1,647,088 

271,234 
164 I 598 

147 

2,920,111 
5,120 

184,809 
8,4_~ 603 

1,915,590 
354,371 
43,663 
78,444 

1,754,115 
190,626 
211,737 

78,542 

2,066 
185,749 

4,799 

346,252 

830,000 
1,078,625 
7,074,579 

l.!.326,024 

611,000 
(611,000) 

1,326,024 

8,1~581 

91480,605 

2021 

2,475,717 
85,314 
28,418 

1,136,672 
235,027 
192,756 

2,757,005 

48,408 

6,95~!317 

1,448,745 
235,174 

21,604 
53,528 

1,443,59~ 
165,454 
260,784 

197,654 
55,387 
34,981 

800,000 
l .!.110, 625 
5,827,529 

1,1311788 

11,953 
(11,953) 

1,131,788 

7,022,793 

8, 154.!.581 



en 

MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, 

EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of 

activities is different because: 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the 

statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated 

useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the amount by 

which depreciation $1,264,183 exceeded capital out.lay $538,866. 

The repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial 

resources of governmental funds, however, this transaction has no effect on net 

assets. Also, governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, 

discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are 

deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is tl1e net 

effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items. 

Premium on certificates of participation 

Bond issuance costs 

Debt principal payments 

Decrease in accrued interest 

Pension expense per Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 

Number 68 is not reported in the governmental funds but is reported as an 

expenditure in the statement of activities. 

OPEB expense per Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 

number 75 is not reported in the govermnental funds but is reported as an 

expenditure in the Statement of Activities 

Change in net position of governmental activities 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 

26,277 

(7,938) 

830,000 

5,231 

$ 1,326,024 

(725,317) 

853,570 

(1,751,907) 

(39,001) 

$ (336,631) 



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST-1\TEMENTS 
December 31, 2022 

1 - SUMFc0.RY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. THE FINJ;..NC!AL REPORTING ENTITY 
The Montrose Recreation District is incorporated 3.S a 
Special District under the laws of the State of Colorado and is 
governed by an elected seven person board. The financial statements 
of the District have been prepared in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles {G_I~, ... Il~P) as applicable to governmental 
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the 
accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accoun-cing and financial report.ing princiPles. J-l.~s required by 
generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements 
present the Montrose Recreation District, a primary government. Based 
o~ Griteria set forth by GASB, there are no component units for which 
the District is financial accountable. 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
Government-wide Statements: The statement of net position and the 
statement of activities display information about the primary 
government (the District) and its component units. These statements 
include the financial activities of the overall government, except for 
fiduciary activities, however, the District does not have any 
fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to minimize the 
double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish 
governmental activities only, as the District does not have any 
business-type activities. Governmental activities generally are 
financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other 
nonexchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in 
whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. Due to the fact· 
that the District's activities are substantially funded by taxes, the 
District considers all of its activities to be governmental 
activities. 

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct 
expenses and program revenues for each function of the District's 
governmental activities. Direct expenses are those that are 
specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are 
clearly identifiabl8 to a particular function. Indirect expen.Se 
allocations that have been made in the funds have been reversed for the 
statement of activities. Program revenues include (a) fees, fines, and 
charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the 
programs and (b) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting 
the operational or capital requirements of a particular program. 
Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all 
taxes, are presented as general revenues. 

17 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRIC2 
NOTES TO FINZ-U'i!CIF ... L STATEMENTS (continued) 
December 31, ?02? 

1 - SUMM ... 21 ... RY OF SIG1'1IFIC1NT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued) 

l'Vhen both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, 
it is the District's policy to use restricted resources first, then 
unrestricted resources as they are needed. 

Fund Financial Statements: The fund financial statements provide 
information about the District's funds. Statements for the fund 
category - goFernmental funds only - are presented as the DistriCt does 
not have any proprietary funds. The emphasis of fund financial 
statements is on major governmental funds, each displayed in a separate 
column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated 
and reported as nonmajor funds. The District does not have any nonmajor 
funds or any fiduciary fund types. 

The District reports the following governmental fund types: 

General Fund: This fund types is used to account for all financial 
resources, except those required by law or administrative action to be 
acCounted for in another fund. The general fund is always reported as a 
major fund in the governmental fund statements. 

Special Revenue Funds: This fund type is used to account for the 
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted by law or 
administrative action to expenditure for specific purposes other than 
debt service or capital projects. The District 1 s special revenue fund 
is reported as a major fund. 

Conservation Trust Fund: This fund is used to account for the ===~='-'-c-~"--=c=~~=~ 
proceeds of Colorado lottery funds that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for specified purposes. Although this fund does not meet 
the criteria of a major fund, the District has elected to report it as 
a major fund in the governmental fund statements. 

Capita 1 Projects Funds: These funds account for financial resources 
earmarked or segregated for the operation, maintenance and acquisition 
or construction of equipment and capital facilities that are supported 
by appropriations and/or advances from the General Fund or donations 
from private or public sources. 

Sales Tax Fund: This fund is used to account for the financing and 
construction of a new Community Recreation Center financed partially 
with the proceeds of a 0.3 percent City of Montrose sales and use tax 
imposed within the City pledged to the District pursuant to the 2014 
Recreation Facility IGA. 

Capital Improvement Fund: This fund 
operation, maintenance 
construction projects of 

and purchase 
the District. 

18 

is 
of 

used to account 
equipment and 

for the 
various 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIP....L STATEMENTS (continued) 
December 31, 20?? 

1 - SUM1'11'.RY OF SIGNIFICANT _'\CCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATTON, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (continued) 

Capital Projects Funds: ( continued) 

Capital Reserve Fund: This fund is used to account for funds held in 
reserve for the purchase of equipment and capital improvements. 

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING 
Government-w-ide Financial Statements. The government-wide :financial 
statements are reported using the economic_ resources measurement focus 
and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned 
and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, 
regardless of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange 
transactions, in which the District gives (or receives) value without 
directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchanges, include 
property taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations. On an accrual 
basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the period for 
which the taxes are levied by the District. Revenue from grants, 
entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which 
all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 

Governmental Fund Financial Statements. Governmental funds are reported 
using the current financial resources measurement focus and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are 
recognized when measurable and available. The District considers all 
revenues reported in the governmental funds to be available if the 
revenues are collected within sixty days after year-end. Property 
taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest are considered to be 
susceptible to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when the related 
fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on 
general long-term debt, claims and judgments, which are recognized as 
expenditures to the extent they have matured. General capital asset 
acquisitions are reported as expenditures in government0l funds. 
Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital 
leases are reported as other financing sources. 

Under the terms of·grant agreements, the District funds certairi programs 
by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants and general 
revenues or operating fund transfers. Thus, when program expenses are 
incurred, there are both restricted and unrestricted resources available 
to finance the program. It is the District's policy to first apply 
cos.t-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by general 
revenues or operating fund transfers. 

19 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIP..L STJiTEMENTS ( c,:,ntinued) 
December 31, 20?? 

1 - SUMMA.RY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES ( continued) 

D. l'~SSETS, LIABTLITES, AND EQUTTY 
Deposits and inFestme.1 ts The cash balances of substantially all funds 
are in separate financial institution accounts. 

Property ta."1·:es. Property taxes are levied on December 22 and attach as a 
lien on property the following January 1. They are payable in full by 
April 30 or in two equal installments due February 28 and June 15. 
Property taxes levied in the current year and collected in the following 
year are reported as a receivable at December 31, net of an estimated 
uncollectible portion. 

Restricted assets. Restricted assets in governmental funds include 
assets restricted by various covenants of the Certificates of 
Participation issued by the District. 

Capital assets. Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at 
cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are recorded 
at their estimated fair value at the date of donation. General 
infrastructure assets are reported at estimated historical cost. The 
cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of 
the asset or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the 
estimated useful lives, and depreciation is recorded in the year of 
acquisition or construction of such assets. Capital assets acquired by 
capital lease are depreciated over the estimated useful lives and are 
included in depreciation expense in the appropriate fund. The estimated 
useful lives are as follows: 

Improvements other than buildings 
Buildings and improvements 
Field house 
InfrastructUre 
Swimming Pool 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

Deferred outflows. Deferred outflows 
amounts paid to PERA in the current 
subsequent to PEAA's measurement date. 

20 

15-25 years 
10-25 years 

5-25 years 
15 years 
25 years 

5 years 

consist 
calendar 

5 years 

of pension and 
year that were 

OPEB 
made 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINP .. NCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
December 31, 20?:· 

1 - SUMlV.L..Il..RY OF SIGNTFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

D. ASSETS, LTJI_.BTLITES, _l\ND EQUITY (continued) 

Long-term debt. In the government-wide financial statements, long-term 
debt and other long--cerrn obligations reported as liabilities in -the 
statement of net position. Lease purchase premiums and discounts, as 
well as issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the 
related debt using the bonds-outstanding method, hrhich approximates the 
effective-interest method. At December 31, 2021 there 1,;,ere no lease
purchase discounts or losses on refinancing included in the statement 
of net posi -cion. Issuance costs, whether or not 1,d thheld from the 
actual debt proceeds received, are reported.as program e):penses. 

In the fund financial statements, issuance costs are recognized when 
incurred. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other 
rinancing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as 
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported 
as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from 
the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 

Compensated absences. The liability for compensated absences reported 
in the government-wide and governmental fund statements consists of 
unpaid accumulated annual leave balances. The liability has been 
calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for 
employees who currently are eligible to receive termination payments. 
The District's policies do not allow for payment to employees who are 
ezpected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon 
termination. 

Deferred inflor.,s. Deferred inflows consist of property taxes levied in 
the current year and of the District's proportionate share of PERP~' s 
collective deferred pension and OPEB inflows. 

Fund balance classification. The governmental fund financial 
statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise 
a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the District 
is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which 
amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The 
classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are 
as follows: 

• Nonspendable: This classification includes amounts that cannot be 
spent because they are either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are 
legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. The 
District did not have any nonspendable resources at December 31, 
2021. 

21 



MONTROSE F.ECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIF..L STJl~TEMENTS ( continued) 
December 31, ?0?2 

1 - SUMlvlP~RY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

D. ASSETS, LIABILTTES, AND EQUITY (continued) 

Fund balance classification. {continued) 

• Restricted: This classification includes amounts for which 
constraints have been placed on the use of the resources either 
(a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt 
covenant), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other 
governmenL.s, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation. The District has classified 
emergency reserves required by the State Constitution, _l\rticle X, 
Section 20 as being restricted because their use is restricted by 
State Statute. The Sales Tax Fund fund balance is restricted 
pursuant to the intergovernmental agreement with the City of 
Montrose, Colorado. 

• Committed: This classification includes amounts that can be used 
only for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by 
formal action of the Board of Directors. These amounts cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the Board of Directors removes 
or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action 
(resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially 
committed. This classification also includes contractual 
obligations to the extent that existing resources have been 
specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual 
requirements. The District did not have any committed resources 
as of December 31, 2022. 

• Assigned: This classification includes amounts that are 
contrained by the District's intent to be used for a specific 
purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can 
be expressed by the Board of Directors or through the Board of 
Directors delegating this responsibility to the Executive Director 
through the budgetary process. This classification also includes 
the remaining positive fund balance for all governmental funds 
except for the General Fund. 

• Unassigned: This classification includes the residual fund 
balance for the General Fund. The Unassigned classification also 
includes negative residual fund balance of any other government 
fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting of Assigned fund 
balance amounts. 

The District would typically use Restricted fund balances first, 
followed by Committed resources, and then Assigned resources, as 
appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively 
spend Unassigned fund resources first to be defer the use of these 
other classified funds. 

22 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FIN}U-JCI?.L ST? .. TEMENTS { continued) 
December 31, 202? 

1 - SUMLVJF .. Ri OF SIGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POL TC TES ( continued) 

D. ASSETS, LIABTLITES, AND EQUITY (continued) 

Pensions. The District participates in the Local Government Division 
Trust Fund (LGDTF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
pension fund administered by the Public Employees' Retirement 
Association of Colorado ( "PER:z\") . The net pension liability, deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position and additions to/deductions from the fiduciary net position 
Of LGDTF have been determined using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. For this purpose, benefit 
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized 
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. 
Investments are reported at fair value. 

The District participates in the Health Care Trust Fund (HCTF), a 
cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB fund administered 
by PER .... l:i... The net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, OPEB expense, 
information about the fiduciary net position, and additions 
to/deductions from the fiduciary net position of the HCTF have been 
determined using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. For this purpose, benefits paid on 
behalf of health care participants are recognized when due and/or 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are 
reported at fair value. 

Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements. The 
preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates 
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Comparative data/reclassifications. Comparative total data for the 
prior year have been presented in the governmental fund financial 
statements in order to provide an understanding of the changes in 
financial position and operations of these funds. Certain amounts 
presented in the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be 
consistent with the current year's presentation. 

23 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST_l!_TEMENTS ( continued) 
December 31, ?O?~ 

1 - SUMl\iI:..RY OF STGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

E. BUDGETS -1UJD BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING 
The District follov-.rs these procedures in establishing budgets: 

a. Budgets are required by state law for all goverPJUental and 
proprietary funds. 

b. During September the proposed budget is submitted to the District 
Board for the fiscal year commencing the following January 1. 

c. Prior to December 31, the budget is adopted and appropriations 
are authorized by ordinance at the fund level for all funds. 
The legal level of budgetary control is at the individual fund 
level for all funds. 

d. Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with the accounting 
basis of all funds. 

e. Each fund's appropriated budget is prepared on a detailed line 
item basis. Revenues are budgeted by source. Expenditures are 
budgeted by department and class and in total by each fund. 
The total fund level constitutes the legal level of control. 
Expenditures may not exceed appropriations at this level. 
Budget revisions at this level are subject to approval by 
resolution from the Board. Within the fund level control 
basis, management may transfer appropriations without Board 
approval. Revisions to the budget were made throughout the 
year. Budget amounts included in the budgetary comparison 
schedules are based on the final legally amended budget. 

f. P..ppropriations lapse at the end of each year, and the District 
Board may adopt supplemental appropriations during the year. 
The Board may add to, subtract from or change 
appropriations, but may not change the form of the budget. Any 
changes in the budget must be within the revenues and reserves 
estimated as available by the District's director or the 
revenue estimates must be changed by the District Board when 
adopting supplemental appropriations. 

Originally adopted budgeted expenditures, amendments and the final, 
amended budgeted expenditures for the year ended December 31, 2022 
are as follows: 

ORIGINAL FINAL 
BUDGET AMENDMENT BUDGET 

General Fund $ 4,807,399 176,215 4,983,614 
Capital Improvement Fund 301,812 110,891 412,703 
Capital Reserve Fund 0 0 
Conservation Trust Fund 350,000 (71,957) 278,043 
Sales Tax Fund 1,910,625 1,910,625 

$ 7,369,836 215 149 7,584,985 

24 



MONTROSE P.ECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
December 31, 2022 

1 - SUMI"LisRY OF SIGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 

E. BUDGETS AND BUDGETF..RY ACCOUNTING (continued) 

The following funds had amounts e:,:pended in excess of the amounts 
budgeted which may be a violation of Colorado State law. 

General Fund 
EXPENDED BUDGETED 

$5,072,568 4,983,614 
Capital Improvement Fund 427,268 412,703 

DIFFERENCE 
88,954 
14,565 

2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

DEPOSITS 
The Colorado Public Deposit Protection Act ( PDPA}, requires that all 
units of local government deposit cash in eligible public depositories. 
Eligibility is determined by state regulators. Amounts on deposit in 
excess -◊f federal insurance levels must be collateralized. The eligible 
collateral is determined by the POPA. POPA allows the institution to 
create a single collateral pool for all public funds. The pool is to be 
maintained by another institution or held in trust for all the uninsured 
public deposits as a group. The market value of the collateral must at 
least equal the aggregate uninsured deposits. 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, 
the District's deposits may not be returned to it. The District does not 
have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. P..s of December 31, 
2022, none of the District's bank.balances of $226,156 were exposed to 
custodial credit risk as all were insured. 

TNVESTMENTS 
As of December 31, 2022, the District had the following investments and 
maturities: 

INVESTMENT TYPE 

INVESTMENT MATURITIES (in years) 
LESS Tlll'.N 

FAIR VALUE 1 1-5 6-10 
Colotrust $7,071,690 7,071,690 
Repurchase agreements 1,911,125 _____ 1,911,125 

$8,982,815 7,071,690 1,911,125 

As of December 31, 2022, the District has invested $7,071,690 in the 
Colorado Government Liquid Asset Trust (COLOTRUST), an investment vehicle 
established for local government entities in Colorado pursuant to Part 7 
of Article 75 of Title 24 of the Colorado Revised Statutes, to pool 
surplus funds for investment purposes. COLOTRUST operates similarly to a 
money market fund and each share is equal in value to $1.00. The value 
of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares. 
The designated custodial bank provides safekeeping and depository 
services in connection with the direct investment and withdrawal 
functions. Substantially all securities owned by the pool are held by 
the Federal Reserve Bank in the account maintained for the custodial 
bank. The custodian's internal records identify the investments owned by 
the pool. 

25 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIJl._L STATEMENTS ( continued) 
December 31, 2022 

2 - DEPOSITS _'-'...ND INVESTMENTS (continued) 

INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Ths District's investment in COLOTRUST is rated p..._n.._n..m by S&P. COLOTRUST 
is routinely monitored by the Colorado Division ,:,f Securities with regard 
to operations and investments. Separately issued financial statements 
may be obtained at the following address: 

COLOTRUST 
717 17~n Street, Suite 1850 
Denver, CO 80202 

These investments are presented on the balance sheet as follows: 

Investments 
Investments - restricted 

2022 . 
$7,071,690 
1,911,125 

$8,982,815 

Fair value measurement. Government Accounting Standards Board Statement 
No. 72 (GASB 72) Fair Value Measurement and Application establishes a 
hierarchy of inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value 
and requires disclosures to be made about investment rair value 
measurements, the level of fair value hierarchy, and valuation 
techniques. According to GASE 72, an investffient ·is defined as a security 
or other asset that (a) a government holds primarily for the purpose of 
income or profit and (b) has a present service capacity based solely on 
its ability to generate cash or to be sold to generate cash. 

The District records assets and liabilities in accordance with GASB 72, 
which establishes general principles for measuring fair value, provides 
additional fair application guidance and enhances disclosures about fair 
value measurements. 

The District's investments and derivative instruments are measured at 
fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value measurements are categorized 
based on the valuation inputs used to measure fair value of assets and 
liabilities as follows. 

Level 1 - Quoted prices in active markets for identical securities. 

Level 2 - Prices determined using other significant observable inputs. 
Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market 
participants would use in pricing a security and are developed based on 
m<?-rket data obtained from sources independent of the reporting entity. 
These may include quoted prices for similar securities, interest rates, 
prepayment speeds, credit risk, and others. Debt securities are valued 
in accordance with the evaluated bid price supplied by the pricing 
service and generally categorized as Level 2 in the hierarchy. 

26 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCLZl..L STATEMENTS (continued) 
December 31, 2022 

,.., - DEPOSITS AND IN'VESTMENTS (continued) 

INVESTMENTS (continued) 

Level :) Prices determined using significant unobservable inputs. 
Un.:ibservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity's m,m 
assumptions about the factors market participants would use in pricing 
the security and would be based on the best information available under 
the circumstances. 

The following table reflects the fair value of the District's 
investments and derivative instruments as of December 31, 2022: 

F-~ssets 

Investments 
Colotrust 

Fair Value Measurement Using 
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

$7,071,690 
Repurchase agreements 1,911,125 ~,, 911,125 

1,911,125 Total investments $8,982,815 

(A) During the year, the District invested in COLOTRUST, a local 
government investment pool. The valuation is measured at net asset 
value and is designed to approximate the share value. The pool's Board 
of Trustees, elected by the participants, is responsible for overseeing 
the management of COLOTRUST, including establishing operating standards 
and policies. COLOTRUST is designed to provide local governments with 
a convenient method for investing in short-term investments carefully 
chose to provide maximum safety and liquidity, while still maximizing 
interest earnings. 

Interest rate risk. The District has an investment policy that limits 
investment maturities of certain repurchase agreements to a maximum 
term of ten years as a means of managing its exposure to fair value 
losses arising from increasing interest rates. The District has not 
experienced fair value losses for the past five years. 

Credit risk. Colorado statutes specify investment instruments meet.ing 
defined rating and risk criteria in which local government entities may 
invest including obligations of the United States and certain U.S. 
government agency securities; certain international agency securities; 
general obligation and revenue bonds of U.S. local government entities; 
bankers' acceptances of certain banks; commercial paper; local 
government investment pools; written repurchase agreements 
collateralized by certain authorized securities; certain money market 
funds; and guaranteed investment contracts. The District's general 
investment policy is to apply the prudent-person rule: Prudence and 
protection of District funds are the primary criteria. All investments 
and bid requests for investments are predicated on liquidity, yield, 
safety and interest of the local economy. As of December 31, 2022, the 
District's investment in Colotrust _Plus, a 2a7-like investment pool, 
was rated AAJl,Jn by Standard & Poor's. 

Concentration of credit risk. Investments must be in accordance with 
Colorado statutes. The District does not have an investment policy 
that limits the amounts that may be invested in specific investment 
types or financial institutions. 

27 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FIN_Z:_._NCIAL STATEMENTS ( continued) 
December 31, 2022 

3 - ?.LLO\IV_T.;..NCE FOR UNCOLLECTIBLES 

Receivables are seated net of allowances for uncollectibles, however, at 
December 31 1 2022, the District considered all accounts collectible and 
accordingly, no provision for an allowance is recorded. 

4 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the ye?,r ended December 31, 2022, was as 
follows: 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being 
depreciated: 

Land 
Total capital assets not 
being depreciated 

Capital assets being 
depreciated: 

Improvements other than 
buildings 

Buildings and improvements 
Field house 
Infrastructure 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

Total capital assets being 
depreciated 

Less accumulated 
depreciation for: 

Improvements other 
than buildings 

Buildings and 
improvements 

Field house 
Infrastructure 
Equipment 
Vehicles 

Total accumulated 
Depreciation 

Total capital assets 

$ 

BEGINNING 
BALANCES 

967,155 

967,155 

3,529,270 
29,020,967 

3,622,755 
96,158 

1,099,165 
220,168 

37,588,483 

1,484,929 

4,982,542 
2,709,428 

BB, 984 
1,055,868 

161,002 

10,482,753 

being depreciated, net 27,105,730 
Governmental activity 
capital assets, riet $28,072,885 

INCREASES 

81,332 
290,689 

166,845 

538,866 

171,066 

970,179 
79,012 

3,419 
24,103 
16,404 

1,264,183 

(725,317) 

1725, 317) 

DECREASES 

4,356 

1,455 
10,500 

16,311 

4,356 

1,455 
10,500 

ENDING 
BALANCES. 

967,155 

967, 155 

3,606,246 
29,311,656 

3,622,755 
96,158 

1,264,555 
209,668 

38,111,038 

1,651,639 

5,952,721 
2,788,440 

92,403 
1,078,516 

166,906 

16,311 11,730,625 

26,380,413 

27,347,568 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District's 
governmental activities as follows: 

Community Recreation Center $ 966, 758 
24,091 
79,012 
1,461 

192,561 

Park maintenance 
Field house 
Flex rec 
Programs, including depreciation of infrastructure assets 

Total depreciation expense $1,264,183 

28 



MONTROSE RECP.EATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIJ-i~L STATEMENTS (continued) 
December 37, ?022 

5 - DEFINED BEl\JEFIT PENSION PLAN 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Pensions. The Montrose Recreation District participates in the Local 
Government Division Tr-ust Fund (LGDTF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension fund administered by the Public Employees' 
Retirement Association of Colorado ("PERP/'). The net pension liability, 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to pensions, pension expense, information about the fiduciary net 
position (FNP). and additions to/deductions from the FNP of LGDTF have 
been determined using the economic resources measurement focus and the 
accrual basis of accounting. For this purpose, benefit payments 
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported 
at fair value. 

General Information about the Pension Plan 

Plan description. Eligible employees of the Montrose Recreation 
District are provided with pensions through the LGDTF - a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by PERA. 
Plan benefits are specified in Title 24, Article 51 of the Colorado 
Revised Statutes (C.R.S.), administrative rules set forth at 8 C.C.R. 
1502-1, and applicable provisions of the federal Internal Revenue Code. 
Colorado State law provisions may be amended from time to time by the 
Colorado General Assembly. PERA issues a publicly available annual 
comprehensive financial report (ACFR) that can be obtained at 
w1-..r1.'i. c;:,per a.. ora / ~. nves1:meni:. /per a.- T ir1ancia ·: - reports. 

Benefits provided as of December 31, 2022. PERA provides retirement, 
disability, and survivor benefits. Retirement benefits are determined 
by the amount of service credit earned and/or purchased, highest 
average salary, the benefit structure(s) under which the member 
retires, the benefit option selected at retirement, and age at 
retirement. Retirement eligibility is specified in tables set forth at 
C.R.S. § 24-51-602, 604, 1713, and 1714. 

The lifetime retirement benefit for all eligible retiring employees 
under the PERA benefit structure is the greater of the: 

• Highest average salary multiplied by 2.5 percent and then 
multiplied by years of service credit 

• The value of the retiring employee's member contribution account 
plus a 100 percent match on eligible amounts as of the retirement 
date. This amount is then annuitized into a monthly benefit based 
on life expectancy and other actuarial factors. 

The lifetime retirement benefit for all eligible retiring employees 
under the Denver Public Schools (DPS) Benefit Structure is the greater 
of the: 

29 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINP.J\JCLn...L STATEMENTS ( continued) 
December 31, 2022 

5 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (cont::inued) 

• Highest average salary multiplied by 2. 5 percent and then 
multiplied by years of service credi-c. 

• $15 times the first 10 years of service credit plus $20 times 
service credit over 10 years plus a monthly amount equal to the 
annuitized member contribution account balance based on life 
expectancy and other actuarial factors. 

In all cases the service retirement benefit is limited to 100 percent 
of highest average salary and also cannoL exceed the maximum benefit 
allowed by federal Internal Revenue Code. 

Members may elect to withdraw their member contribution accounts upon 
termination of employment with all PER2\ employers; waiving rights to 
any lifetime retirement benefits earned. If eligible, the member may 
receive a match of either 50 percent or 100 percent on eligible amounts 
depending on 'io,rhen contributions were remitted to PERA, the date 
employment was terminated, whether 5 years of service credit has been 
obtained and the benefit structure under which contributions were made. 

Upon meeting certain criteria benefit recipients who elect to receive a 
lifetime retirement benefit generally receive post-retirement cost-of
living adjustments, referred to as annual increases in the C.R.S. 
Subject to the Automatic Adjustment Provision (P~~P) under C.R.S. § 24-
51-413, eligible benefit recipients under the PERA benefit structure 
who began membership before January 1, 2007 and all eligible benefit 
recipients of the DPS benefit structure will receive an annual increase 
(AI) or AI cap of 1.00 percent unless adjusted by the automatic 
adjustment provision (AAP). Eligible benefit recipients under the PERA 
benefit structure who began membership after January 1, 2007 will 
receive the lessor of an annual increase of the 1.00 percent AI cap or 
the average of the Consumer Price Index for Urban Wage Earners and 
Clerical Workers for the prior calendar year, not to exceed a 
determined increase that would exhaust 10 percent of PER.A's Annual 
Increase Reserve (AIR) for the LGDTF. The !'AP may raise or lower the 
aforementioned AI for a given year by up to . 25 percent based on the 
parameters specified C.R.S. § 24-51-413. 

Disability benefits are available for eligible employees once they 
reach five years of earned service credit and are determined to meet 
the definition of disability. For State Troopers whose disability is 
caused by an on-the-job injury, the five-year service requirement is 
waived and they are immediately eligible to apply for disability 
benefits. The disability benefit amount is based on the lifetime 
retirement benefit formula(s) shown above considering a minimum 20 
years of service credit, if deemed disabled. 

30 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FIRI:I..NCIAL STATEMENTS (cc•ntinued) 
December 31, 2022 

5 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSTON PLAN (continued) 

General Information about the Pension Plan (continued) 

Survivor benefits are determined by several factors, 1"1hich include the 
amount of earned service credit, highest average salary of the 
deceased, the benefit structure (s) under which service ere di t was 
obtained, and the qualified survivor(s) who will receive the benefits. 

Contributions pro\dsions as of Decen1ber 31, 2022. Eligible employees 
and the Montrose Recreation District and the State are required to 
contribute to the LGDTF at a rate set by Colorado statute. The 
contribution requirements for the LGDTF are established under C.R.S. § 
24-51-401, et seq. and § 24-51-413. Employee contribution rates for 
the period of January 1, 2022 through December 31, 2022 are summarized 
in the table below: 

January 1, 2022 
Through 

July 1, 2022 January 1, 2023 
Through Through 

July 1, 2023 
Through 

June 30, 2022 December 31, 2022 June 30, 2023 December 31, 2023 

Employee contribution 
(all employees other than State 
Troopers) 

8.50% 9.00% 9. 00% 

State Troopers 

Contribution rates 
defined in C.R.S. § 

12.50% 13.00% 

9.00\ 

13. 00% 

for the LGDTF are expressed as a percentage of 
24-51-101 (42). 

13.00% 

salary as 

The employer contribution requirements for all employees other than 
State Troopers are su..11\Irtarized in the table below: 

January 1, 2022 July 1, 2022 
Through Through 

January 1, 2023 
Through 

July 1, 2023 
Through 

June 30, 2022 December 31, 2022 June 30, 2023 December 31, 2023 

Employer contribution rate 
Amount of employer contribution 
apportioned to the Health Care 
Trust Fund as specified in 
C.R.S. § 24-51-208 (1) (f) 

Amount apportioned to the LGDTF 

~.mortization Equalization 
Disbursement (AED) as specified in 
c~R.S. § 24-51-411 

Supplemental Amortization 
Equalization Disbursement [SAED) as 
specified in C.R.S. § 24-51-411 

Defined Contribution Supplement as 
specified in C.R.S. § 24-51-415 

Total employer contribution rate 
to the LGDTF 

10. 50% 

(1.02\) 

9.48\ 

2.20% 

1.50% 

0.03% 

13.21% 

11.00% 11.00% 

(l.02~) (1.02%) 

9. 98% 9. 98% 

2.20% 

1.50% 

0.03% 0. 06% 

13.71% 13.74% 

~+Contribution rates for the LGDTF are expressed as a percentage of 
salary as defined in C.R.S. § 24-51-101(42). 

31 

11. 00\ 

(1.02%) 

9.98% 

2.20% 

1. 50% 

0.06% 

13.74% 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {con-cinued) 
December 31, 20?? 

5 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued) 

General Information about the Pension Plan {continued) 

The employer contribution requirements for State Troopers are 
summarized in the table below: 

January 1, :::o::::::: July 1, :::o:::::::: 
Through 

January 1, :::0::::3 
Through 

July 1, :::o:::3 
Through Through 

June 30, ::::o::::: December 31, ::::o:::::::: June 30, 2023 December 31, ::::0::::3 

Employer contribution rate 

Amount of employer 
contribution apportioned to the 
Health Care Trust Fund as 
specified in 
C.R.S. § ::::4-51-:208(1) {fl 

~.mount apportioned to the LGDTF 

Amortization Equalization 
Disbursement (AEDJ as specified 
in C.R.S. § ::::4-51-411 

Supplemental Amortization 
Equalization Disbursement (SAED) 
as specified in C.R.S. § 24-51-
411 

Defined Contribution Supplement 
as specified in C.R.S. § 24-51-
415 
Total employer contribution 
rate .to the LGDTF 

13. 60% 

( 1. 0:2~,) 

12.58% 

2.20% 

1.50% 

0.03% 

16.31% 

14.10% 14.10% 

(1. O:'.Sr) 11. Oc•,i 

13.08% 13.08% 

1.50% 1.50% 

0.03% 0. 06%: 

16.81% 16.84% 

Contribution rates for the LGDTF are expressed as a percentage of 
salary as defined in C.R.S. § 24-51-101(42). 

14. lO'r 

11.0c,J 

13.08% 

1.50% 

0.06% 

16.84% 

Employer contributions are recognized by the LGDTF in the period in 
which the compensation becomes payable to the member and the Montrose 
Recreation District is statutorily committed to pay the contributions 
to the LGDTF. Employer contributions recognized by the LGDTF from 
Montrose Recreation District were $282,265 for the year ended December 
31, 2022. 

32 



MONTROSE F.ECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STP~TEMENTS ( continued) 
Decerr~er 31, 2022 

5 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of 
Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

The net. pension liability for the LGDTF was measured as of December 
31, 2022, and the total pension liability (TPL) used to calculate the 
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
December 31, 2021. Standard update procedures were used to roll 
forward the TPL to December 31 1 2022. The Montrose Recreation District 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on Montrose 
Recreation District contributions to the LGDTF for the calendar year 
2022 relative to the total contributions of participating employers to 
the LGDTF. At December 31, 2022, the Montrose Recreation District 
reported a liability of $6,879,513 for its proportionate share of the 
net pension liability. 

At December 31, 2022, 
0.2561253523 percent, 

the Montrose Recreation District proportion was 
which was an increase of O. 0260061632 percent 

from its proportion measured as of December 31, 2021. 

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Montrose Recreation District 
recognized pension expense of $1,751,907. Jtt December 31, 2022, the 
Montrose Recreation District reported deferred outflows of resources 
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the 
following sources: 

Difference between expected and actual experience $ 
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 

or pension plan investments 
Changes in proportion and differences between 

contributions recognized and proportionate share 
of contributions 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 

Total 

33 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources. 

1,048,306 

(22,297) 
N/A 

$1,026,009 

12,801 

N/A 

12 801 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINP.~NCIAL STATEMENTS ( continued) 
December 31, ?02? 

=, - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN ( continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 

Pre-retirement mortality assumptions for State Troopers 1-.1ere based 
upon the PubS-2010 Employee Table with generational projection using 
scale MP-2019. 

Post-retirernenL non-disabled mortality assumptions for members other 
than State Troopers were based upon the PubG-2010 Healthy Retiree Table, 
adjusted as follows: 

• Males: 94 % of the rates prior to age 80 and 90~.i'. of the rates for 
ages 80 and older, with generational projection using scale MP-
2019. 

• Females: 87% of the rates prior to age 80 and 107~ of the rates 
for ages 80 and older, with generational projection using scale 
MP-2019. 

Post-retirement non-disabled mortality assumptions for State Troopers 
were based upon the unadjusted PubS_-2010 Healthy Retiree Table, with 
generational projection using scale MP-2019. 

Post-retirement non-disabled beneficiary 

based upon the PUB-2010 Contingent Survivor 
mortality assumptions were 

Table, adjusted as follows: 

• Males: 97% of the rates for all ages, with generational 
projection using scale MP-2019. 

• Females: 105% of the rates for all ages, with generational 
projection using scale MP-2019. 

Disabled mortality assumptions for members other than State Troopers 
were based upon the PubNS-2010 Disabled Retiree Table using 99% of the 
rates for all ages with generational projection using scale MP-2019. 

Disabled mortality assumptions for State Troopers 
unadjusted PubS-2010 Disabled Retiree Table 
projection using scale MP-2019. 

34 

were based upon the 
with generational 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST?.TEMENTS ( con-cinued) 
December 31, ?022 

5 - DEFINED BENEFTT PENSION PLAl>J (continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (con-cinued) 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, 
resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will be 
recogni:ed as a reduction of the net pension liability in -che year ended 
December 31, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflm,,.rs of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be 
recogni::ed in pension expense as follows: 

Year ended December 31 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

Thereafter 

$(308,138) 
(469,775) 
(339,293) 

(96,154) 
202,641 

$ 0 

Actuarial assumptions. The TPL in the December 31, 2021 actuarial 
valuation was determined using the following actuarial cost method, 
actuarial assumptions and other inputs: 

Actuarial cost method 
Price inflation 
Real wage growth 
Wage inflation 
Salary increases, including wage inflation: 

Members other than State Troo~ers 
State Troopers 

Long-term investment rate of return, net of 
pension plan investment expenses, including 
price inflation 

Discount rate 
Post-retirement benefit increases: 

PERA benefit structure hired prior to 1/1/07; 

Entry age 
2.30% 

.70% 
3.00% 

3.20% to 11.30% 
3.20% to 12.40% 

7.25% 
7 .25% 

and DPS benefit structure ( compounded annually) 1. 00% 
PERA benefit structure hired after 12/31/06 Financed by the AIR 

Post-retirement benefit increases are provid~d by the_AIR, accounted 
separately within each Division Trust Fund, and subject to moneys 
being available; therefore, liabilities related to increases for 
members of these benefit tiers can never exceed available assets. 

The TPL for the LGDTF, as of the December 31, 2022, measurement date, 
was adjusted to reflect the disaffiliation, as allowable under C.R.S. 
§ 24-51-313, of Tri-County Health Department (Tri-County Health), 
effective December 31, 2022. As of the close of the 2022 fiscal year, 
no disaffiliation payment associated with Tri-County Health was 
received, and therefore no disaffiliation dollars were reflected in 
the FNP as of December 31, 2022, measurement date. 

35 



MONTROSE P.ECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST.~TEMENTS ( continued) 
December 31, ?022 

5 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSTON PLAN (continued) 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources 
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (continued) 

The mortality tables described below are generational mortality tables 
developed on a benefit-weighted basis. 

Pre-retirement 
Troopers h1ere 

mortality assumptions for members other 
based upon the PubG-2010 Employee 

generational projection using scale MP-2019. 

than 
Table 

State 
with 

Pre-retirement mortality assumptions for State Troopers were based 
upon the PubS-2010 Employee Table with generational projection using 
scale MP-2019. 

Post-retirement non-disabled mortality assumptions for members other 
than State Troopers were based upon the PubG-2010 Healthy Retiree Table, 
adjusted as follows: 

• Males: 94 t of the rates prior to age 80 and 90~5 of the rates for 
ages 80 and older, with generational projection using scale MP-
2019. 

• Females: 87% of the rates prior to age 80 and 107% of the rates 
for ages 80 and older, with generational projection using scale 
MP-2019. 

Post-retirement non-disabled mortality assumptions for State Troopers 
were based upon the unadjusted PubS-2010 Healthy Retiree Table, with 
generational projection using scale MP-2019. 

Post-retirement non-disabled beneficiary mortality assumptions were 

based upon the PUB-2010 Contingent Survivor Table, adjusted as follows: 

• Males: 97% of the rates for all ages, with generational 
projection using scale MP-2019. 

• Females: 105% of the rates for all ages, with generational 
projection using scale MP-2019. 

Disabled mortality assumptions for members other than State Troopers 
were based upon the PubNS-2010 Disabled Retiree Table using 99% of the 
rates for all ages with generational projection using scale MP-2019. 

Disabled mortality assumptions for State Troopers 
unadjusted PubS-2010 Disabled Retiree Table 
projection using scale MP-2019. 

36 

were based upon the 
with generational 



MONTROSE FECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) 
December 31, ?022 

5 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (conLinued) 

Pension Plan Disclosure Statements for PERA-Affiliated 
Employers in the Local Government Division Trust Fund (continued) 

The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2021, valuation were 

based on the results of the 2020 experience analysis for the period 

January 1, 2016, through December 31, 2019 and were reviewed and 

adopted by PERP/ s Board during their November 20, 2020, meeting. 

The long-term expected return on plan assets is reviewed as part of 
regular exper~ence studies prepared at least every five years for PERA. 
The most recent analyses were outlined in the Experience Study report 
dated October 28, 2020. 

Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of 
return assumption, including long-term historical data, estimates 
inherent in current market data, and a log-normal distribution 
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of 
return (expected return, net of investment expense and inflation) were 
developed for each major asset class. These ranges were combined to 
produce the long-term expected rate of return. by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentages and then adding expected inflation. 

The PERF-~ Board first adopted the 7. 25% long-term expected rate of 
return as of November 18, 2016. Following an asset/liability study, 
the Board reaffirmed the assumed rate of return at the Board's 
November 15, 2019, meeting, to be effective January 1, 2020. P~s of 
the most recent reaffirmation of the long-term rate of return, the 
target asset allocation, and best estimates of geometric real rates 
of return for each major asset class are sl.lllLmarized in the table as 
follows: 

Asset Class 
Global 
Equity 

Fixed Income 

Private 
Equity 

Real Estate 

Alternatives 1 

Total 

Target 
Allocation 

54.00% 

23.00% 

8.50% 

8.50% 

6.00% 

100.00% 

37 

30 Year Expected 
Geometric Real Rate of Return 

5.60% 

1. 30% 

7.10% 

4.40% 

4.70% 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIJ.tL STATEMENTS ( continued) 
December 31, ?Q?? 

5 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (continued) 

Pension Plan Discl·osure Statements for PERA-Affiliated Employers in 
the Local Government Division Trust Fund 

• 

• 

Note: In setting the long-term e:,:pected raLe of return, projections 

employed to model future returns provide a range of expected long-term 
returns that, including expected inflation, ultimately support a long
term expected nominal rate of return assumption of 7.25 pErcent. 

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the TLP was 7. 25 
percent. The projection of cash flm,,1s used to determine the discount 
rate applied the actuarial cost method 
addition, the following methods and 
projection of cash flows: 

and assumptions shown above. In 
assumptions 1 .. 1ere used in the 

Total covered payroll for the initial projection year consists of the 
covered payroll of the active membership present on the valuation 
date and the covered payroll of future plan members assumed to be 
hired during the year. In subsequent projection years, total covered 
payroll was assumed to increase annually at a rate of 3.00 percent. 

Employee contributions were assumed to be made at the member 
contribution rates in effect for each year, including the required 
adjustments resulting from the 2018 and 2020 ~..P~P assessments. 
Employee contributions for future plan members were used to reduce 
the estimated amount of total service costs for future plan members. 

Employer contributions were assumed to be made at rates equal to the 
fixed statutory rates specified in law for each year, including the 
required adjustments resulting from the 2018 and 2020 AAP 
assessments. Employer contributions also include current and 
estimated future AED and SAED, until the actuarial value funding 
ratio reaches 103%, at which point the l\_ED and SAED will each drop 
0.50% every year until they are zero. Additionally, estimated 
employer contributions reflect reductions for the funding of the AIR 
and retiree health care benefits. For future plan members, employer 
contributions were further reduced by the estimated amount of total 
service costs for future plan members not financed by their member 
contributions. 

• Employer contributions and the amount of total service costs for 
future plan members were based upon a process to estimate future 
actuarially determined contributions assuming an analogous future plan 
member growth rate. 

38 



MONTROSE FECREATION DISTRICT 

NOTES TO FINANCIJi~L STATEMENTS ( continued) 

December 31, ?Q?? 

5 - DEFINED BENEFIT ?ENSION PLAN (continued) 

Pension Plan Disclosure Statements for PERA-Affiliated Employers in 
the Local Government Division Trust Fund (continued) 

s The AIR balance was excluded from the initial FNP, as, per statute, 

lHR amounts cannot be used to pay benefits until transferred to either 

the retirement benefits reserve or the survivor benefits reserve, as 

appropriate. AIR transfers to the FNP position and the subsequent 

AIR benefit payments were estimated and included in the projections. 

• Benefit payments and contributions were assumed to be made at the 
middle of the year. 

Based on the above assumptions and methods, the LDGTF's FNP was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments 
of current members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return 
of 7.25 percent on pension plan investments was applied to all periods 
of projected benefit payments to determine the TPL. The discount rate 
determination does not use the municipal bond index rate and therefore, 
the discount rate is 7.25 percent. There was no change in the discount 
rate from the prior measurement date. 

Sensitivity of the Montrose Recreation District proportionate share of 
the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate. The 
following presents the proportionate share of the net pension liability 
calculated using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the 
proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.25 
percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8. 25 percent) than the current 
rate: 

Proportionate share of 
the net pension 
liabili i:y 

1% Decrease 
(6.25%) 

$4,310,720 

Pension pl an 
LGDTF' s FNP 

fiduciary net position. 
is available in PERA1 s 

Current Discount 
Rate (7.25%) 

2,567,818 

1% Increase 
(8.25%) 

1,108,721 

Detailed information about the 
ACFR which can be obtained at 

,,.,,.r;.-.,,,.,1. coper a. ,:1rg/ investments/pera-f7 nancial-report.s. 

Payables to the pension plan 
The District had no payables due to the LGDTF at December 31, 2022. 

39 



MONTROSE P.ECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAI.. ST.Z-\TEMENTS (continued) 
December 31, 2022 

6 - DEFTNED BENEFIT OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLPJ\l 

Summary of significant Accounting Policies 

OPE3. Montrose Recrea-cion District participates in the Health Care 
Trust Fund (HCTF), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit 
OPEB fund administered by the Public Employees' Retirement Association 
of Colorado ("PER.A,."). The net OPEB liability, deferred ,:,utflows of 
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, OPEB 
expense, inforrnatic•n about the fiduciary net posit.ion (FNP) and 
additions to/deductions from the FNP of the HCTF have been determined 
using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. For this purpose, benefits paid on behalf of health care 
participants are recognized whe_n due and/or payable in accordance with 
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

General Information about the OPEB Plan 

Plan description. Eligible employees of the Montrose Recreation 
District are provided with OPEB through the HCTF-a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit OPEB plan administered by PERA.. The 
HCTF is established under Title 24 1 Article 51, Part 12 of the Colorado· 
Revised Statutes (C.R. S.), as amended and sets forth a framework that 
grants authority to the PER.n... Board to contract, self--insure, and 
authorize disbursements necessary in order to carry out the purposes of 
the PERA.Care program, including the administration of the premium 
subsidies. Colorado State law provisions may be amended by the Colorado 
General Assembly. PERA. issues a publicly available annual comprehensive 
financial report (ACFR) that can be obtained at 
1•.r;.-,,,w. cope 1·~. ,:,ro / ~, nvestments /pera-f inancia 1-reports. 

Benefits provided. The HCTF provides a health care premium subsidy to 
eligible participating PERA. benefit recipients and retirees who choose 
to enroll in one of the PERA. health care plans, however, the subsidy is 
not available if only enrolled in the dental and/or visiori plan(s). The 
health care premium subsidy is based upon the benefit structure under 
which the member retires and the member's years of service credit. For 
members who retire having service credit with employers in the Denver 
Public Schools (DPS) Division and one or more of the other four 
Divisions (State, School, Local Government and Judicial), the premium 
subsidy is allocated between the HCTF and the Denver Public Schools 
Health Care Trust Fund (DPS HCTF). The basis for the amount of the 
premium subsidy funded by each trust fund is the percentage of the 
member contribution account balance from each division as it relates to 
the total member contribution account balance from which the retirement 
benefit is paid. 

40 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO F 1N_Z,,.NCIP~L STATEMENTS ( continued) 
December 31, 2022 

6 - DEFTNED BENEFIT OTHER POST El'1PLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEK) PLPJ\i (continued) 

General Information about the OPEB Plan (continued} 

C.R.S. § 24-51-1202 et seq. specifies the eligibility for enrollment in 
the heal th care plans offered by PER7:i. and the amount of the premium 
subsidy. The law governing a benefit recipient's eligibility for the 
subsidy and the amount of the subsidy differs slightly depending under 
which benefit structure the benefits are calculated. All benefit 
recipients under the PER:2t benefit structure and all retirees under the 
DPS benefit structure are eligible for a premium subsidy, if enrolled 
in a health care plan under PERACare. Upon the death of a DPS benefit 
structure retiree, no further subsidy is paid. 

Enrollment in the PER~Care health benefits program is voluntary and is 
available to benefit recipients and their eligible dependents, certain 
surviving spouses, and divorced spouses and guardians, among others. 
Eligible benefit recipients may enroll into the program upon 
retirement, upon the occurrence of certain life events, or on an annual 
basis during an open enrollment period. 

PERA Benefit Structure 
The maximum service-based premium subsidy is $230 per month for benefit 
recipients who are under 65 years of age and who are not entitled to 
Medicare; the maximum service-based subsidy is $115 per month for 
benefit recipients 1,-rho are 65 years of age or older or who are under 65 
years of age and entitled -co Medicare. The maximum service-based 
subsidy, in each case, is for benefit recipients with retirement 
benefits based on 20 or more years of service credit. There is a 5 
percent reduction in the subsidy for each year less than 20. The 
benefit recipient pays the remaining portion of the premium to the 
extent the subsidy does not cover the entire amount. 

For benefit recipients who have not participated in Social Security and 
who are not otherwise eligible for premium-free Medicar~ Part A for 
hospital-related services, C.R.S. § 24-51-1206(4) provides an 
additional subsidy. According to the statute, PERA cannot charge 
premiums to benefit recipients without Medicare Part A that are greater 
than premiums charged to benefit recipients with Part A for the same 
plan option, coverage level, and service credit. Currently, for each 
individual PERACare enrollee, the total premium for Medicare coverage 
is determined assuming plan participants have both Medicare Part A and 
Part B and the difference in premium cost is paid by the HCTF or the 
DPS HCTF on behalf of benefit recipients not covered by Medicare Part 
A. 

41 



MONTROSE F.ECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST_~.TE1'1ENTS (continued) 
December 31, 2022 

6 - DEFINED BENEFIT OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PL_!iJ\J (continued) 

General Information about the OPEB Plan (continued) 

DPS Benefit Structure 
The maximum service-based premium subsidji is $230 per month for 
retirees who are under 65 years of age and who are not entitled to 
Medicare; -che m3.ximurn service-based subsidy is $115 per month for 
retirees who are 65 years of age or older or who are under 65 years of 
age and entitled to Medicare. The maximum service-based subsidy, in 
each case, is for retirees with retirement benefits based on 20 or more 
years of service credit. There is a 5 percent reduction in the subsidy 
for each year less than 20. The retiree pays the remaining portion of 
the premium to the extent the subsidy does not cover the entire amount. 

For rei:irees who have not participated in Social Security and who are 
not otherwise eligible for premium-free Medicare Part A for hospital
related services, the HCTF or the DPS HCTF pays an alternate service
based premium subsidy. Each individual retiree meeting these conditions 
receives the maximum $230 per month subsidy reduced appropriately for 
service less than 20 years, as described above. Retirees who do not 
have Medicare Part A pay the difference between the total premium and 
the monthly subsidy. 

Contributions. Pursuant to Title 24, Article 51, Section 208 (1) (f) of 
the C.R. S., as amended, certain contributions are apportioned to the 
HCTF. PE~~-affiliated employers of .the State, School, Local Government, 
and Judicial Di visions are required to contribute at a rate of 1. 02 
percent of PERA-ineluctable salary into the HCTF. 

Employer contributions are recognized by the HCTF in the period in 
which the compensation becomes payable to the member and the Montrose 
Recreation District is statutorily committed to pay the contributions. 
Employer contributions recognized by the HCTF from Montrose Recreation 
District were $ for the year ended December 31, 2022. 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

At December 31, .2022, the Montrose Recreation District reported a 
liability of $574,695 for its proportionate share of the net OPEB 
liability.. The net OPEB liability for the HCTF was measured as of 
December 31, 2022, and the total OPEB liability (TOL) used to calculate 
the net OPEB iiability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
December 31, 2021. Standard update procedures were used to roll-forward 
the TOL to December 31, 2022. The Montrose Recreation District 
proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on Montrose Recreation 
District contributions to the HCTF for the calendar year 2022 relative 
to the total contributions of participating employers to the HCTF. 

At December 31, 2022, the Montrose Recreation District proportion was 
0.0203261480%, which was an increase of 0.002887966% from its 
proportion measured as of December 31, 2021. 

42 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STJ:.TEMENTS ( continued) 
December 31, 2022 

6 - nEFIN~D BENEFIT OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLP..N (continued) 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued) 

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Montrose Recreation District 
recogni=ed OPEB expense of $39,001. Jl..t December 31, 2022, the. t'1ontrose 
Recreation District reported deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following 
sources: 

Deferred Outflows of Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Difference bet1.,reen expected 
and actual experience $ 

Changes of assumptions or 
other inputs 

Net difference between projected 
and actual earnings on OPEB 
plan investments 10,136 

Changes in proportion and 
differences between contributions 
recognized and proportionate 
share ~f contributions 24,903 

Contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 

Total 

NA 

$35,039 

58,451 

NA 

58,451 

A.mounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB, 
resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement date, will 
be recognized as a reduction of the net OBEB liability in the year 
ended December 31, 2023. 

Other amounts reported as deferred 
inflows of resources related to 
expense as follows: 

Year Ended 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
Thereafter 

43 

outflows of resources and 
OPEB will be recognized 

$21,773 
16,496 
25,832 

8,085 
4,682 

$ 0 

deferred 
in OPEB 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO Fil-ilANCIAL ST_!!.TEMEl-ilTS (continued) 
Decembe1- 31, 2022 

6 - DEFINED BENE::FIT OTHER POST EM.PLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLJlJ-J (continued) 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued) 

Actuarial assumptions. The TOL in the December 31, 2021 actuarial 
valuation h 1as dei:ermined using the :follOi•lirnJ actuarial cost method, 
actuarial assumptions and other inputs: 

Actuarial cost method 

Price inflation 

Real wage growth 

Wage inflation 

Salary increases, including wage inflation 

Members other than State Troopers 

State Troopers 

Long-term investment rate of return, net of OPEB plan 
investment expenses, including price inflation 

Discount rate 

Health care cost trend rates 

PERA benefit structure: 

Service..based premium subsidy 

PERACare Medicare plans 

Medicare Part A premiums 

DPS benefit structure: 

Service..based premium subsidy 

PERACare Medicare plans 

Medicare Part A premiums 

State Division 

3.30%-10.90% 

3.20%-12.40% 

44 

School Division 

Local Government 
Division 

Entry age 

2.30% 

0.70% 

3.00% 

3.40%-11.00% 3.20%-11.30% 

3.20%-12.40% NIA 

7.25% 

7.25% 

0.00% 

6.50% in 2022 
gradually decreasing 

to 4.50% in 2030 

3.75% in 2022, 
gradually increasing 

to 4.50% in 2029 

0.00% 

NIA 

NIA 

Judicial Division 

2.80%-5.30% 

NIA 



MONTROSE P.ECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FI1'Ln.NCIF_L ST}l_TEMENTS (cc,ntinued) 
December 31, ?Q?? 

6 - DEFINED BENEFIT O'T'HER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT {OPEB) PLAN (continued) 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued) 

The TOL for the HCTF, as of the December 31, 2022, measurement date, 

was adjusted to reflect the disaffiliatic,n, allowable under C.R. S. 

§ 24-51-313, of Tri-County Health Department (Tri-County Health), 

effective December 31, 2022. As of the close of the 2022 fiscal year, 

no disaffiliation payment associated with Tri-County Health was 

received, and therefore no disaffiliation dollars were reflected in the 
FNP as of the December 31, 20223, measurement date. 

Beginning January 1, 2022, the per capita health care costs are 

developed by plan option; based on 2022 premium rates for the 

UnitedHealthcare Medicare Advantage Prescription Drug (M.~PD) PPO plan 

#1, the UnitedHealthcare MAPD PPO plan #2, and the Kaiser Permanente 
MltPD HMO plan. Actuarial rnorbidi ty factors are then applied to estimate 

individual retiree and spouse costs by age, gender, and health care 
cost trend. This approach applies for all members and is adjusted 

qccordingly for those not eligible for premium-free Medicare Part A for 
the PERA benefit structure. 

Participant 
Age 

65.69 
70 
71 

72 
73 
74 

75 
76 
77 
78 

79 
80 

81 and older 

Age-Related Assumpt{ons 
Annual Increase Annual Increase 

(Malel) (Female) 
3.00% 1.50% 
2.90% 1.60% 
1.60% 1.40% 
1.40% 1.50% 
1.50% 1.60% 
1.50% 1.50% 
1.50% 1.40% 
1.50% 1.50% 
1.50% 1.50% 
1.50% 1.60% 
1.50% 1.50% 
1.40% 1.50% 
0.00% 0.00% 

45 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FIN_:;NCI?.L ST~.TEMENTS (continued) 
Decembe,- 31, 70?? 

6 - DEFINED BENEFIT OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (9c,ffcinued) 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued) 

MAPD PPO #1 with MAPD PPO #2 with MAPD HMO (Kaiser) with 

Medicare Part A Medicare Part A Medicare Part A 
Retiree/Spouse Retiree/Spouse Retiree/Spouse 

Sample Age Male Female Male Female Male Female 

65 $ 1,704 1,450 583 496 1,923 1,634 

70 1,976 1,561 676 534 2,229 1,761 

75 2,128 1,681 728 575 2,401 1,896 

MAPD PPO#l MAPD PPO#Z MAPD HMO (Kaiser) 
without without without 

Medicare Part A Medicare Part A Medicare Part A 

Retiree/Spouse Retiree/Spouse Retiree/Spouse 
Sample Age Male Female Male Female Male Female 

65 $ 6,514 5,542 4,227 3,596 6,752 5,739 

70 7,553 5,966 4,901 3,872 7,826 5,186 

75 8,134 6,425 5,278 4,169 8,433 6,657 

The 2022 Medicare Part A premium is $499 (actual dollars) per month. 

All costs are subject to the health care cost trend rates, as discussed 
below. 

Health care cost trend rates reflect the change in per capita health 
costs over time due to factors such as medical inflation, utilization, 
plan design, and technology improvements. For the PERA benefit 
structure, health care cost trend rates are needed to project the 
future costs associated with providing benefits to those PERACare 
enrollees not eligible for premium-free Medicare Part A. 

Health care- cost trend rates for the PERA benefit structure are based 
on published annual heal th care inflation surveys in conj unction with 
actual plan experience (if credible), building block models and 
industry methods developed by health plan actuaries and administrators. 
In addition projected trends for the Federal Hospital Insurance Trust 
Fund (Medicare Part A premiums) provided by the Centers for Medicare & 

Medicaid Services are referenced in the development of these rates. 
Effective December 31, 2021, the health care cost trend rates for 
Medicare Part A premiums were revised to reflect the current 
expectation of future increases in rates of inflation applicable to 
Medicare Part A premiums. 

46 



MONTROSE RECRE..'!TION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINAl-JCLD_L STATEMENTS ( cc,ntinued) 
December 31, :'07:2 

6 - DEFINEll S~NEFIT OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEBi PL~J\: (continued) 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued) 

The PER.A. benefit structure health care cost trend rates that were used 
to measure the TOL are summarized in the table below: 

PER..II..Care Medicare Part A 
Year Medicare Plans Premiums 
2022 6.50', 3.75" 
2023 6.25'; 4.00~ 
2024 6.00% 4.00' 
2025 5. 7 5', 4.00', 
2026 5.50" 4. 25;5 
2027 5.25% 4.25% 
2028 5.00% 4. 25', 
2029 4.75% 4.50% 
2030+ 4.50% 4.50~ 

Mortality assumptions used in the December 31, 2021 valuation for the 
determination of the total pension liability for each of the Division 
Trust Funds as shown below, ieflect generational mortality 
applied, as applicable, in the determination of the TOL for 
but developed using a headcount-weighted basis. Affiliated 
of the State, School, Local Government, and Judicial 
participate in the HCTF. 

and were 
the HCTF, 
employers 
Divisions 

Pre-retirement mortality assumptions for the State and Local 
Government Divisions (members other than State Troopers) were based qn 
the PubG-2010 Employee Table, with generational projection using scale 
MP-2019: 

Pre-retirement mortality assumptions for State Troopers were based 

upon the PubS-2010 Employee Table with generational projection using 
scale MP-2019. 

The pre-retirement mortality assumptions for the School Division were 

based upon the PubT-2010 Employee Table with generational projection 
using scale MP-2019. 

Pre-retirement mortality assumptions for the Judicial Division were 

based upon the PubG-2010(A) F.bove-Median Employee Table with 

generational projection using scale MP-2019. 

47 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FI1~_2l.NCLn.L STP..TEMENTS ( continued) 
necember 3-1, 2022 

6 - DEFINED BENEFIT OTHER POST EMPLOY11ENT BENEFIT (OPi=":B) PLJ!.N (continued) 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred InfloWs of Resources Related to OPEB (continued) 

Mc,rtalit:i assumptions used in the December 31, 2021 valuation for the 
determination of the tc,tal pensron liability for each of the Di vision 
Trust Funds as shown below were applied, as applicable, in the 
determination of the TOL for the HCTF but developed using a headcount
weighted basis. P..ffiliated employers of t.he State, School, Local 
Government, and Judicial Divisions participate in the HCTF. 

Pre-retirement rnortali ty assumptions for the State and Local 
Government Di visions (members other than State Troopers) 1,.1ere based on 
the PubG-2010 Employee Table, with generational projection using scale 
MP-2019: 

Pre-retirement mortality assumptions for State Troopers were based 

upon the PubS-2010 Employee Table with generational projection using 
scale MP-2019. 

The µ.r:e-.r:eL.irement mortality assumptions for the School Division were 
based upon the PubT-2010 Employee Table with generational projection 
using scale MP-2019. 

Pre-retirement mortality assumptions for the Judicial Division were 
based upon the PubG-2010(A) Above-Median Employee Table with 

generational projection using scale MP-2019. 

Post-retirement non-disabled mortality assumptions for the State and 

Local Government Divisions (members other than State Troopers) were 

based upon the PubG-2010 Healthy Retiree Table, adjusted as follows: 

• 

• 

Males: 94% of the rates prior to age 80 and 90% of the rates for 

ages 80 and older, with generational projection using scale MP-
2019. 

Females: 87% of the rates prior to age 80 and 107% of the rates 

for ages 80 and older, with generational projection using scale 
MP-2019. 

Post-retirement non-disabled mortality assumptions for State Troopers 

were based upon the unadjusted PubS-2010 Healthy Retiree Table, with 
generational projection using scale MP-2019. 

Post-retirement non-disabled mortality assumptions for the School 

Division were based upon the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table, adjusted 
as follows: 

48 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO Fil~ANCIP.~L STATEMENTS (continued) 
December 31, 2022 

6 - DE~INED BENEFTT OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENE~IT (OPEB) FLAN (continued) 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB ( co:rl'cinued) 

• 

• 

Males: 112€: of the rates prior to age 80 and 94% of the rates for 

ages 80 and older, with generaticmal projection using scale MP-

2019. 

Females: 83·~ of the rates prior to age 2.0 and 106': of the rates 

forages 80 and older, 1,dth generational projection using scale MP-
2019. 

Post-retirement non-disabled mortality assumptions for the Judicial 

Division 1,mre based upon the unadjusted PubG-2010 (A} Jl..bove-Median 

Healthy Retiree Table with generational projection using scale MP-2019. 

Post-retirement non-disabled beneficiary mortality assumptions were 

based upon the Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor Table, adjusted as folloh1s: 

• 

• 

Males: 97% of the rates for all ages, with generational projection 

using scale MP-2019. 

Females: 105i of the rates for all ages, with generational 

projection using scale MP-2019. 

Disabled mortality assumptions for members other than State Troopers 

were based upon the PubNS-2010 Disabled Retiree Table using 99% of the 

rates for all ages with generational projection using scale MP-2019. 

Disabled mortality assumptions for State Troopers were based upon the 

unadjusted PubS-2010 Disabled Retiree Table with generational 

projection using scale MP-2019. 

The following health care costs assumptions were updated and used in 

the roll-forward calculation for the HCTF. 

• Per capita health care costs in effect as of December 31, 2021, 

valuation date for those PERACare enrollees under the PERA benefit 

structure who are expected to attain age 65 and older ages and are 

not eligible for premium-free Medicare Part A benefits have been 
updated to reflect costs for the 2022 plan year. 

49 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL ST_;.TEMENTS (continued) 
December 3i, ?022 

6 - nEFINED BENEFIT OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (cc,ntinued) 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued) 

• 

The December 31, 2021, valuation utili:es premium information as of 

January 1, 2022, as the initial per capita health care cost. As of 
that date, PERn..Care health benefits administration is performed 
UnitedHealthcare. In that transition, t.he costs for the Medicare 

Advantage Options #2 decreased to a level that is lower than the 
maximum possible service-related subsidy as described in the plan 
provisions. 

The health care cost trend rates applicable to health care premiums 

were revised to reflect the then-current expectation of future 
increases in those premiums. L'1edicare Part A premiums continued 
with the prior valuation trend pattern. 

Jtctuarial assumptions pertaining to per capita heal th care costs and 
their related trend rates are analyzed and updated annually by PERP-~ 
Board's actuary, as discussed above. 

Effective for the December 31, 2022, measurement date, the timing of 
the retirement decrement as adjusted to middle-of-year within the 
valuation programming used to determine the TOL, reflecting a 
recommendation from the 2022 actuarial audit report, dated October 14, 
2022, summarizing the results the actuarial audit performed on the 
December 31, 2021, actuarial valuation. 

The actuarial 
were based on 

period January 

and adopted 

Board meeting. 

assumptions used in the December 31, 2021, 
the results of the 2020 experience analysis 
1, 2016, through December 31, 2019, and were 

by the PERA Board at their the November 

valuation 

for the 

revie1"red 

20, 2020, 

The long-term expected return on plan assets is review.ed as part of 

regular experience studies prepared at least every five years for 

PERA. The most recent analyses were outlined in the Experience Study 

report dated October 28, 2020. 

50 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FIN_!\..NCL!i~L STP.TEMENTS ( continued) 
December 31, /Q?-J 

6 - DEFINED BENEFIT OT2ER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN (continued) 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued) 

Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of 
return assumption, including 

inherent in current market 
long-term 

data, and 
historical data, estimates 

a log-normal distribution 
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of e:,:pected future real rates 
of return (e:.:-:pected return, net ,:,f investment expense and inflation) 

h"ere developed for each rnaj or asset class. These ranges were combined 

to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation 
percentages and then adding expected inflation. 

As of the most recent reaffirmation of the long-term rate of return, 
the target asset allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates 
of return for each major asset class are summarized in the table as 
follows: 

Asset Class 
Global Equity 

Fixed Income 

Private Equity 

Real Estate 

Alternatives1 

Total 

Target Allocation 

54.00% 

23.00% 

8. 50%:. 

8.50% 

6.00% 

100.00% 

30 Year Expected 
Geometric Real Rate of Return 

5.60% 

1. 30% 

7.10% 

4.40% 

4.70% 

Note: In setting the long-term expected rate of return, projections 
employed to model future returns provide a range of expected long-term 
returns that, including expected inflation, ultimately support a long
term expected rate of return assumption of 7.25%. 

51 



MONTROSE F.ECF.EATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINJl~NCIAL STJtTEMENTS (continued) 
December 11, 2022 

6 - DFFTNED BENEFIT OTHER POST EMPT,OYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLP~N (continued) 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued) 

Sensi ti Fi ty of the Montrose R-acreation District pro.i'Jortionata share of 
tha net OPEB liabilit:y to ch=.nqas in the Health. Care Cost Trend Rates. 
The following presents the net OPEB liability using the current health 
care cost trend rates applicable to i:he PERJ:'I~ benefit structure, as 
well as if it were calculated using health care cost trend rates that 
are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the 
current rates: 

Initial PERACare Medicare 
trend rate 

Ultimate PER.A.Care Medicare 
trend rate 

Initial Medicare Part A 
trend rate 

Ultimate Medicare Part A 
trend rate 

Net OPEB Liability 

1~ Decrease in 
Trend Rates 

3.50% 

3. 00'! 

3.50', 
$203,562 

Current 
Trend Rates 

6.25% 

4.50% 

4.00% 

4.50% 
165,959 

1 ;c:. Increase in 
Trend Rates 

7. 25'; 

5.50% 

5.00% 

5. 50% 
151, llO 

to measure the TOL was 7. 25 Discount rate. The discount rate used 
percent. The projection of cash flows 
rate applied the actuarial cost method 
addition, the following methods and 
projection of cash flows: 

used to determine the discount 
and assumptions shown above. In 
assumptions were used in the 

• Updated heal th care cost trend rates for Medicare Part A premitLTns 
as of the December 31, 2022, measurement date. 

• Total covered payroll for th'e initial projection year consists of 
the covered payroll of the active membership present on the 
valuation date and the covered payroll of future plan members 
assumed to be hired during the year. In subsequent projection 
years, total covered payroll was assumed to increase annually at a 
rate of 3.00%. 

• Employer contributions were assumed to be made at rates equal to 
the fixed statutory rates specified in law and effective as of the 
measurement date. 

• Employer contributions and the amount of total service costs for 
future plan members were based upon a process to estimate future 
actuarially determined contributions assuming an analogous future 
plan member growth rate. 

52 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
!~OTES TO FINP.NCIAL ST?.TEMENTS { conti~1ued) 
December 37, ·:>0?2 

6 - nEFINED BENEFIT OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (O?EB) PLAN (continued) 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and 
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (continued) 

• Est.imat~d transfers of dollars into the HCTF 
c,f purchase service agreements intended 
associated with OPEB benefits. 

representing a portion 
to cover the costs 

• Benefit payments and contributions were assumed to be made at t.he 
middle oft.he year. 

Based on the above assumptions and methods, the HCTF's FHP was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate o:f 
return of 7. 25 percent on OPEB plan investments was applied to all 
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the TOL. The 
discount rate determinati0n does not use the municipal bond index 
rate, and therefore, the discount rate is 7. 25 percent. There was no 
change in the discount rate from the prior measurement date. 

Sensi ti vi ty of the Montrose Recreation District proportionate share of 
the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following 
presents the proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated 
using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the 
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability would be ir it were 
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower 
( 6. 25 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher ( 8. 25 percent) than the 
current rate: 

Proporti'onate share of the 
ne~ OPEB liability 

OPEB plan 
HCTF' s FNP 

fiduciary net 
is available 

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase 
(6.25) Rate (7.25%) (8.25%) 

$203,562 

position. 
in PERA' s 

165,959 156,110 

Detailed information about the 
ACFR which can be obtained at 

www. ,.::,:,per a. or,;u' -i nvestments/pera-f~ nancia 1 -rep,:,rts. 

Payables to the OPEB plan 

The District had no payables due to the OPEB plan at December 31, 
2022. 

7 - SHORT-TERM DEBT 
During the year ended December 31, 2022, the District had no short term 
debt. 

53 



MONTROSE RECREATION" DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIJtL ST_!l~TEI•rnNTS ( continued) 
December 31, 20?? 

Certificates of Participation 
The District entered into a ground and improvernenL lease with UMB Bank, 
N.A. UMB Bank, N.A. issued $27,010,000 certificates of participation, 
Series 2014, dated June 24, 2014, to be used for the cost of 
cc,nstructing, acquiring and equipping a new recreation center and 
associated improvements as authorized, fund a reserve fund and pay the 
costs of issuing the certificates. 

The District has agreed to pay base rentals from annually appropriated 
funds. The lease agreements are in accordance with Colorado law as to 
being subject to annual appropriation by the District. The District 
intends to annually appropriate for the lease payments in its Sales Tax 
Fund. The primary revenues on deposit in the Sales Tax Fund are 
comprised of funds received from the City of Montrose pursuant to an 
Intergovernmental Agreement Recreation Facility Election 2014, 
entered into as of May 6, 2014 between the District and the City. .~t 
an election held on April 1, 2014, the City's voters authorized an 
increase in the City' sales and use tax from 3. 0% to 3. 3% and also 
authorized the City to enter into the 2014 Recreation Facility IGA. 

Pursuant to the 2014 Recreation Facility IGA, the City will pledge the 
proceeds of the additional O. 3% sales and use tax imposed within the 
City to the District for the Project. A $1,911,125 reserve is held by 
a trustee, as required by the agreement. 

The interest rates range from 2. 00% to 4. 75~ payable semiannually on 
June 1 and December 1. A schedule, by years, of future minimum lease 
payments as of December 31, 2022, follows: 

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 

2028 - 2032 
2033 - 2037 
2038 - 2040 

TOTAL BASE RENTALS 
Lease amounts representing interest 

PRESENT VALUE OF MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS 

54 

SCHEDULE OF 
BASE RATES. 

$1,907,125 
1,908,625 
1,907,875 
1,909,475 
1,906,975 
9,541,625 
9,547,375 
3,816,250 

32,445,325 
10,625,325 

$21,820,000 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIP.L STP.TEMENTS ( c,:,ntinued) 
December 31, ?022 

9 - LONG-'T'ERM DEBT 
The follc•iiing is a summary of long-term liability activity ,:,:f the 
District for the year ended December 31, 2022: 

BEGINNING 
BJ>..L.l.i.NCE ADDITIONS 

Governmental Acti,rities: 
Capital leases: 
Certificates of 

P.EDOCTIONS 
ENDING 
BALANCE 

DUE WITHIN 
ONE YEAR . 

Participation $:2,650,000 830,000 :1,s:0,000 870,000 
Premium on Certificates 

of Participation .... 83,l~l :s,:ss 

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITY 
LONG-TER11 LIASILI'!'IES $..," 933 191 856 "77 076 914 895 "55 

10 - FUND BALANCE 
The District has adopted GASB Statement No. 54, i,,,,1hich redefined how 
fund balances of the governmental funds are presented in the financial 
statements. Fund balances are classified as follows: 

Nonspendable - F..mounts that cannot be spent either because they are 
not in a spendable form or because they are legally or contractually 
required to be maintained intact. 

Restricted F..mounts that 
because of state or federal 
grantors or creditors. 

can be spent only 
laws, or externally 

for specific purposes 
imposed conditions by 

Committed i'..mounts that can be used only for specific purposes 
determined by a formal action by Board of Director's resolution. 

Assigned - Amounts that are designated by the Executive Director for a 
specific purpose but are not spendable until a resolution is passed by 
the Board of Directors. 

Unassigned 
classifications. 

All amounts not included in other spendable 

The details of the fund balances are included in the Balance Sheet -
Governmental Funds. As discussed in Note 1, restricted funds are used 
first as appropriate. P .. ssigned Funds are reduced to the extent that 
expenditure authority has been budgeted by the Board of Directors or 
the .P,_ssignment has been changed by the Executive Director. Decreases 
to fund balance first reduce Unassigned Fund balance; in the event that 
Unassign8d Fund Balance becomes zero, then Assigned and Committed Fund 
Balances are used in that order. 

General Fund 

The General Fund has Unassigned Fund Balance of $3,145,350 at December 
31, 2022. 

55 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FINANCIP~L STATEMENTS (continued) 
December 31, 2022 

11 - INTERFUND RECEIV.Il.3LES, E-'.~·1·J!~LES J:..ND TR:;NSFERS 

The composition ,::,f Inter.fund balances as of December 31, 2022 is as 
folloh'S: 

IL DUE FROM/TO OTHER FUNDS 

RECEIVABLE FUND PAYABLE FUND AMOUNT. 
Capital Improvsment General $248,874 

The above balance was advanced b::{ the General Fund to pay capital 
improvements. 

B. INTERFUND TRJ'J,SFERS 
Interfund transfers to supplement the expenditures of 01:her funds 
were as follows: 

General Fund 
Capital Improvement Fund 

TOTP..L 

TRANSFERS OUT TRFJ,SFERS IN 
$611,000 

61·,,000 

$611,000 611,000 

The above amounts were transferred for operations and capital 
outlay. 

12 - PARTICIPATION IN PUBLTC ENTITY RTSK POOL 
The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; 
theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; 
injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District has joined 
together with other special districts in the State to form the Colorado 
Special Districts Property and Liability Pool _(CSDPLP), a public entity 
risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance 
program for member special districts. The District pays an annual 
premium to CSDPLP for its general insurance coverage and workers' 
compensation insurance coverage. The intergovernmental agreement of 
the CSDPLP provides that CSDPLP will be self-sustaining through member 
premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in 
excess of $1 million for each insured event. 

The District continues to carry commercial insurance for all other 
risks of loss, including employee health and accident insurance. 
Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial 
insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 

13 - TJl.X, SPENDING AND DEBT LIMITATIONS 
The State Constitution, Article X, Section 20, has several limitations 
regarding revenue raising, spending abilities, and other specific 
requirements of state and local governments. The Section is complex 
and subject to judicial interpretation. In 1998, the District obtained 
voter approval to collect and retain all revenues including property 
tax beginning in fiscal year 1996 without limitation under the Section. 
District management therefore believes it is in compliance with the 
Section. The emergency reserves required under the Section have been 
funded. 

56 



MONTROSE FECFEATION DISTRICT 
NOTES TO FIN}iNCIP.L ST_Il.TEMENTS (c,:,rn:inued) 
December 31, 20-:::·2 

14 - CONTTNGENT L TJ:l.EILITIES 
Under the terms of federal and state grants, costs 
not being appropriate expenses that could lead co 
grantor agencies. District management is not 
e:-:penses that would not be all,::>h1ed. 

15 - SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

may be questioned as 
reimbursement to the 
aware of any such 

Subsequent events were evaluated through P..ugust 14, 2023 which is the 
date the finB.ncial statements were available to be issued. 

In 2021 and 2022, domestic and international economies face uncertainty 
related to the COVID-19 pandemic. Voluntary, and then subsequently 
mandatory, shelter-in-place orders necessitated temporary business 
closing as the uncertaintJ' continues. Though the extent. of disruption 
is expected to be temporary, the extent of the financial impact and 
other possible impacting matters are unknown at this time. 

57 



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY 

INFORMATION 



MONTROSE P.ECP,EP.TION DISTRTCT 
BUDGETJsRY COMPARISON SCHEDULE GENERl'L :::'UND 

Por the year ended Decembe:..· 31, 20:::: with comparative actual amounts 

for the vear s=nded December 31, 20::1 

GENEF...~..L REVENUES 
Taxes 

Property taxes $ 

Specific ownership ta): 
Penalties and interest on 
delinquent tax 

Intergovernmental revenues 

Interest income 

Rental and miscellaneous 
Facility rental 
Brochll1:'e advertisements 
.Z\.sset sales 
Donations 

TOTAL TAXES 

Reimbursement and miscellaneous 
TOTP..L REN~Z\.L A_~D MISCELLANEOUS 

Concessions 

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET 

2,636,083 
271,000 

2,815 

2,909,898 

1,650 

67,635 
14, 050 

81,685 

38,000 

TOTPL GENERJi..L REVENUES $_~3c,c0c3cl=-.c,a'='='-

58 

FIN.Z\.L 
BUDGET 

2, 641, 671 
365,014 

2,815 

3,009,500 

28,032 

66,434 
14,950 

950 

82,334 

32,014 

3,151,880 

2021 
VARLZ\.NCE 

WITH FINAL 
BUDGET 

POSITIVE 
ACTUAL (NEGP.TTVE) .Z\.CTU.~ 

2,658,026 16,355 2,123,589 
391,595 26,581 348,228 

3,993 1,178 3,900 
12,500 12,500 150,016 

3,066,114 56,614 2,625,733 

74,200 46,168 1,375 

70,079 3,645 64,735 
16,900 1,950 725 

4,314 3,364 737 
1,120 1,120 

10,713 10,713 1.9,117 
103,126 20,792 85,314 

51,876 19,862 28,418 

3,295,316 1 43,436 2,740,840 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
3UDGET:.Zl.RY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENER.Zl.L FUND (continued) 
For the year ended December 31, 2022 with comparative actual amounts 

fo,- the year ended December 31, 2021 

ADMTNISTP_l',.TIVE EXPENDITURES 
Current: 

Salaries 
Sick leave 
Medicare 
Board paid PEP_Il._ 
Unemplo:yment 
Insurance package 
Insurance - health and life 
Insurance - worl:men' s 
compensation 

Insurance - board liability 
Tuition reimbursement 
Recruitment 
Postage 
Copier and computer 
Office supplies 
.Zl,.ccounting 
Auto mileage 
Training anrl: t.rovF.l 
Publications 
Software support 
Dues 
Treasurer's fees 
Miscellaneous 
Water, sewer and sanitation 
Natural gas 
Electricity 
Telephone 
Uniforms 
Bank charges 
Board meeting e:-:pense 
Election 
Networking 
Legal 
Consulting 
Shared services 
Maintenance supplies 
Inclusion services 
Advertising 
Vehicle operations and 
maintenance 

Special events 
J..wards 
Signage 
Furniture, fixtures 
and equipment 

TOTP.L .P-.DMINISTPJ);.TIVE 

$ 

ORIGIN.AL 
BUDGET 

777,076 
6,000 
8,961 

278,308 
5,000 

86,058 
288,830 

49,000 
210 

25,000 
18,100 

2,750 
18,000 

9,000 
20,000 

2,400 
1 5 I 000 

500 
35,800 
6,880 

54,650 

3,600 
1,250 

25,500 
3,000 
3,000 
1,500 

12,000 
60,000 
14,500 

10,000 

500 
2,500 

16,300 

EXPENDITURES ~-----=l~,~8~6~1~,~1~7~3-

FIN.Zl.L 
BUDGET 

671,803 
27,192 

9,569 

274 I 945 
5,898 

78,000 
233,669 

49,000 
210 

18,100 
3,250 

35,000 
5,200 

19, 821· 
2,400 

22,000 
500 

40,716 
9,392 

54,650 

3,600 
1,250 

29,682 
3,600 

115 
1,500 

12,600 
60,000 
15,000 

10,000 

3,500 

5,000 

1,707,162 

59 

.Z>.CTU.Zl.L 

721,113 
20,868 
15,892 

312,846 
3,067 

73,782 
277,253 

27,152 
210 

18,364 
2,267 

16,021 
4,467 

20,683 
2,074 

18,406 
422 

45,805 
8,799 

52,963 
329 

736 
7B8 

1,172 
8,536 

675 
37,345 

3,572 
115 

30 
10,968 
35,938 

35,262 

2,845 
1,672 

93 

459 

879 

2,453 

1,786,321 

V.?i.RL?\NCE 
WITH FIN.I\.L 

BUDGET 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

(49,310) 
6,324 

(6 I 323} 
(37,901) 

2,831 

4,218 
(43,584) 

21,848 

(264) 
983 

18,979 
733 

(862) 
326 

3,594 
78 

(5,089) 
593 

1,687 
(329) 
(736) 
(788) 

(1,172) 
(4,936) 

575 
(7,663) 

28 

1,470 
1,632 

24,062 
(20,262) 

{1,672) 

(93) 

3,041 

(879) 

2,547 

(79,159) 

2021 

530 I 961 
10,904 

9,741 
260,579 

4,539 
73,761 

224,125 

35,891 
210 

599 

188 
11,820 

6,185 
19,887 

505 
8,214 

373 

23,716 
7,164 

42,551 
47 

518 

663 
963 

4,168 
759 

27,170 
3 I 095 

9,053 
23,904 
10,009 

704 

627 

861 
1,882 

408 

1,128 

1,357,872 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 

BUDGETARY COMPJ,.RISON SCHEDULE - GENER.~L FUND (continued) 
For the year ended December 31, ::o:: with comparat:'..v-e actual amounts 
for the year ended December :n, 2021 

PARK M.~INTEN.t:,NCE 
Salaries 
Medicare 
Equipment rental 
Training and travel 
Water, sewer and sanitation 
Water lease 
Natural gas 
Electricity 
Telephone 
Chemicals 
Irrigation 
Uniforms 
Safety and medical supplies 
Shared services 
Maintenance repair 
Maintenance supplies 
Vehicle repo.irs 
Vehicle operations and 

$ 

OF.IGINJ..L 
BUDGET 

139,708 
2,026 
5,000 
5,000 
7,000 
1,300 
1,500 
8,500 

12,000 
5,000 
2,000 

2,000 
89,500 
15,000 

5, 000 

maintenance 8,000 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 13,000 
Facility, repair and development 5,500 

CONCESSIONS 
Salaries 
Medicare 
Cost of goods sold 
Sales tax 
Bank charges 
Maintenance repairs 
Maintenance supplies 
Vehicle operations and 

maintenance 
Dues 
Program supplies 
Furniture, fixtures and 

equipment 

!Y'iARKETING EXPENDITURES 
CURRENT: 

Newsletter 
Website 
Printing 
Postage 
Office supplies 
Training and travel 
Auto mileage 
Software suppo:ct 
consulting 
Program supplies 
Miscellaneous 
Advertising 
1-.wards 
Special events 
Promotional items 

TOTAL P~.RK 1"',AINTENANCE $ __ ~3=2070,000304~ 

$ 5,752 
83 

15,000 
1,700 

300 
100 

100 
250 

75 

500 
TOTAL CONCESSIONS $ __ ~2

0
3~,

0
8
0
6
0
0~ 

$ 1,700 
3,600 

43,500 
13,500 

500 
1,000 

1,040 

31,149 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 

600 
3,000 , 
5, 935 
4,070 

TOTAL ~~-RKET!NG EXPENDITURES 109,594 

60 

FIN.~L 
BUDGET 

138,181 
2,004 
5,387 
4,000 
2,227 
1,300 
1,500 
8, 0 0 0 

12,000 
6,000 
2,000 

2,000 
79,500 
15,000 

6,500 

7,200 
10,000 

5,500 
308,299 

4,662 
68 

28,000 
2,042 

600 

50 

35,422 

1,200 
11,955 
18,893 
16,500 

500 
1,000 

1,671 
19,920 

20,860 
2,000 
6,170 
6,457 

90 

107,216 

ACTUAL 

138,952 
2,305 
3, 780 
2,306 
3, 604 

330 
1,037 

14,095 
480 

11,183 
6,623 
1,461 

970 
72,640 
14,250 

9,376 

9,354 
7,202 
1,092 

301,040 

6,422 
75 

30,470 
2,456 
3,560 

5 87 
27 

66 

43,663 

1, 935 
5,017 

29,366 
6, 968 

1,531 
6,258 

160 
15,999 

845 
3,819 
6,456 

90 
78,444 

VJ,.RI.?l..NCE 
WITH FIN.Z•.L 

BUDGET 
POSITIVE 

(NEG~.TIVE) 

( 771 l 
( 301 l 

1,607 
1,694 

(1,377) 
970 

463 
(6, 0 95) 

(480) 
81 7 

( 623} 
539 

1,030 
6,860 

750 
(2, S761 

(2,154) 
2,798 
4,408 
7,259 

(1,760) 
(7) 

(2,470) 
(414) 

(3,560) 
13 

(27) 

(16) 

(8,241) 

(735) 
6,938 

{10,473) 
9,532 

500 

1,000 

140 
13,662 

(160) 
4,861 
1,155 
2,351 

1 

28,772 

2021 

ACTUJ..L 

110,006 
1,593 
1,021 
3, 367 
4,701 

305 
1,060 

13,452 
720 

10,334 
5,208 

618 
167 

1,875 
6, 633 
8, 087 
5,136 

8,024 
6,843 
2,600 

191,754 

1, 872 
27 

16,911 
1,544 

521 

540 

189 
21,604 

1'5 
4,782 
6, 974 
4, 200 

107 

980 

105 

27,892 

3,578 
4,715 

53,528 



MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
BUDGET.ti.RY COMP.Z>.RISON SCHEDULE GENEP-Z>.L FUND tcont1nueC1l 
For the year ended December 31, 20::2 with compa:o_·ati ve actual amounts 
for the ~-ear ended December 31, ::021 

202:: :::?021 
VARLi't.NCE 

WITH FINAL 
BUDGET 

ORIGINAL FINAL POSITIVE 
BUDGET BUDGET .Z\.CTUP.L (NEGATIVE) .Z\.CTUAL 

COMMUNITY RECRE.Z>.TION CENTER REVENUES 
General admission $ 238,500 317,353 286,361 (30, :'92) 232,147 
Annual passes and punch cards 781,000 1,182,824 1,172,157 (10,667) 779,771 
Private and public lessons 60,255 53,111 52,980 (131) 58,035 
Personal training 23,000 38,000 47,300 9,300 26,291 
Sales and rentals 8,500 8,500 10,065 1,565 6,023 
Facility rental 25,645 32,200 37,918 5,718 13, so:: 
Red Cross training 4,765 2,800 2,527 (273) 4,635 
Program fees 18,280 17,300 16,610 ( 6 90) 5,358 
Special events 1, 682 l, 6 82 454 
Child watch 16,960 17,000 19,488 2,.188 10,156 

TOTJ:,.L ?.EVENUES $ 1,176,905 1,669,088 1,647,088 (22,000) 1,136,672 

COMMUNITY RECREATION CENTER E}:PENDITURES 
Salaries $ 1,188,823 1,125,413 1,135,806 (10,393) 922,322 
Medicare 17,238 16,318 11,557 4,761 12,549 
Office supplies 850 350 564 (214) 2,627 
Auto mileage 1,137 4 00 4 00 
Training and travel 5,116 11,011 10,308 703 1,692 
Software support 700 ( 70 0 l 
Water, sewer and sanitation 35,000 35,000 19,849 15,151 25,405 
Natural gas 110,000 171,109 178,167 (7 I 058) 122,372 
Electricii:y 124,000 118 I 992 147,468 (28,476) 135,372 
Telephone 14,400 12,000 9,533 2,467 15,889 
Chemicals 50,000 64,250 64,592 (342) 49,270 
Irrigation 4,000 4,000 5,803 (1,803} 3,044 ' 
Uniforms 10,250 10,212 6,246 3, 966 3,394 
Security 4,560 5,701 4,213 1,488 5,698 
Program supplies 16,869 12,630 13,142 (512) 11,664 
Maintenance repairs 71,379 72,143 65,294 6,849 55,432 
Maintenance supplies 40,000 40,125 39,763 362 43,697 
Inclusion services 500 
Program equipment 24,402 22,597 17,512 5,085 17,503 
Advertising 450 100 350 943 
Promotional items 1,232 (1,232) 
Signage 500 1,566 (1,566) 
Awards 800 1,451 5,260 (3,809) 154 
Safety and medical supplies 3 / 463 1,425 1,425 3 I 490 
Special events 960 960 1,029 ( 6 9 l 6'3 
American Red Cross 2,241 3,350 4,391 (1,041) 5,895 
Miscellaneous 1,687 ( 1,687) 674 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 22,950 22,084 13,132 8, 952 
Facility repair and development 5,000 5,000 5,000 3,814 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES ' 1,754,438 1,756,971 1,758,914 (1,943) 1,443,593 

61 



MO~TROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERZIL FUND ( continued) 
For the year ended December 31, :022 v:ith comparative actual amounts 
for the year ended December 31, 2021 

FIELD HOUSE REVENUES 
Facility rental 
General admission 
Annual passes and punch cards 
Sales and re...,tals 

$ 

ORIGIN.I:;.L 
BUDGET 

40,544 
28,748 

Player fees 22,336 
Sponsor fees 2,825 
Program fees 52,625 
Intergove1.'"Tl.mental revevue 5,000 

TOTJl..L REVENUES $ __ _,1~5~2~,~0~7~8e_ 

FIELD HOUSE EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 
Medicare 
Water, sewer, sanitation 
Natural gas 
Electric 
Telephone 
Maintenance repair 
Maintenance supplies 
Safety and medical supplies 
Printing 
Office supplies 
Sales tax 
Training and travel 
Chemicals 
Irrigation 
Uniforms 
Security 
Field trips 
Program supplies 
Program equipment 
.r...dvertising 
Awards 
Special events 
Transportation 
Signage 
vehicle operations and 

maintenance 
Furniture, fixtures 

$ 157,217 
2,280 
8,000 

13,000 
14,000 
1,060 
8,000 
8,350 

900 
60 

250 

7,450 
5,000 
2,000 
3,760 
1,041 

500 

6,270 
4,917 
2,000 
3,037 

900 
250 

1,000 

and equipment 200 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ __ ....::2=5=1~,~•~•~2-

FIN.r...L 

BUDGET 

2022 

45,700 
18,000 

62 

24,637 
550 

49,118 
10,000 

148,005 

138,432 
2,007 
4,697 

18,658 
16,252 

8,000 
7,100 

245 

50 
5,000 
2,000 
3,527 
1,041 

197 
5,204 
7,698 

100 

1,100 

200 

221,508 

ACTUAL 

51,899 
17,579 

106 

31,400 
100 

58,514 
5,000 

164,598 

124,866 
1,280 
7,717 

15,929 
21,597 

6,964 
7,322 

62 

4 

146 
4,647 
1,708 
3,258 

774 

197 
6,528 
8,176 

75 
487 

211,737 

VJl..RIANCE 
WITH FINJl..L 

BUDGET 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

6,199 
(421) 

106 

6,763 
(450) 

9,396 
(5,000) 
16,593 

13,566 
727 

(3 / 020) 
2,729 

{5,345) 

1,036 
(222) 
183 

(4) 

(96) 
353 
292 
269 
267 

(1,324) 
(478) 

25 
613 

200 

9,771 

2021 

ACTUAL 

42,808 
22,252 

301 

32 
25,536 

600 

54,733 
46,494 

192,756 

131,135 
1,846 
8,654 

12,893 
16,719 

824 
6,769 
6,899 

453 

192 
3 / 793 

950 
2,022 

958 

30,670 
32,590 

1,561 
470 

1,386 
260,784 



MONTROSE RECRE.li.TION DISTRICT 

BUDGET.ll,RY COl"IPARISON SCHEDULE - GENEP-% FUND ( continued) 
For the year ended December 31, 2022 with comparative actual amounts 
for the year ended December 31, 2021 

FLEX REC P.EVENUES 
General admission 
Annual passes and punch cards 
Personal training 
Facility rental 
Program fees 

$ 

ORIGINFL 
BUDGET 

TOTFL REVENUES$ ______ _ 

FLEX RC EXPElIDITURES 
Salaries 
Office supplies 
Building rental 
Software support 
Copier and computer 
Consulting 
Shared services 
Promotional items 
Telephone 
Security 
Program supplies 
Maintenance supplies 
Program equipment 
Advertising 
Promotional items 
Safety and medical supplies 
Signage 

$ 

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 
Facility repair ~nd development 

TOTJl..L EXPENDITUP.ES ~ ______ cc_ 

63 

FINJl.L 
BUDGET 

2,000 
1,500 

667 
500 
500 

5,167 

6,061 
100 

16,316 
950 

200 
217 
320 

7,176 
19,320 

2,300 
800 

500 
19,183 

73,443 

::!021 
VARIANCE 

WITH FINAL 
BUDGET 

POSITIVE 
.Zi.CTU.Zl.L (NEG})..TIVE) ACTU.Zl...L 

(2,000) 
(1,500) 

{667) 
(500) 

14 7 (353) 
147 (5,020) 

6,061 
100 

29,932 (13,616) 
79 871 

2,324 (2,324) 
13,830 (13,830) 

136 (136) 
1,483 (1,483) 

200 
3,900 (3,683) 
3,083 (2,763) 

7,176 
18,354 966 

318 1,982 
800 

1,651 (1,651) 
500 

15,710 3,473 
23 (23) 

90,823 (17,380) 



MO~TROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
3UDGET.L,RY COMPl'..RISON SCHEDULE - GENEFJ..L FUND (conti.nu:d) 
For the year ended December 31, ::o::: with comparative act:ual amounts 
for the vear ended December 31, ::0::1 

?ROGP-?iJvl REVENUES 
Player fees 
Sponsm.· fees 
Program fees 
Sale of merchandise 
Facility rental 

$ 

ORIGIN.l\.L 
BUDGET 

1-n, 233 
J..3, 350 
57,900 

5,500 

:n7,983 TOT.Z1.L PROGRz.M P.EVEN1BS $ ---'='-'-=~ 

PROGR:z.M EXPENDITURES 
Salaries 
Medicare 
Sales tax 
Facility rental 
Office supplies 
Auto mileage 
Training and travel 
Software support 
Consulting 
Dues 
Water, sewer and sanitation 
Uniforms 
Field trips 
Program supplies 
Maintenance repairs 
Maintenance supplies 
Program equipment 
Advert.isi!'lg 
Awards 
Safety and medical supplies 
Vehicle operations and 

maintenance 
Tourney fees 
Promotional items 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 

TOT.l\.L ?ROGP-x.M EXPENDITURES 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER 
( UNDER) E):PENDITURES 

OTHER FINJI.NCING SOURCES (USES) 
Transfers out 

TOTJI.L OTHER FINJI.NCING 
SOURCES (USES) 

NET CH.i:,.NGE IN FUND BAL.Zu.'1CE 

FOND Ell.LANCE BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FOND BAL.L._I\JCE END OF YEAR 

$ 90,382 

1,311 
650 
371 
300 
406 

1,250 

599 

1,820 
18,525 
10,221 

3,071 

200 
6,445 

21,648 
1,250 
4,963 
2,516 

630 
3,500 
1,200 
6,600 

177,858 

4,505,399 

(72,800) 

(302,000) 

(302,000) 

(374, BOO) 

2,861,449 

2,486,649 

FINJ>.L 
BUDGET 

148,508 
11,480 
61,965 

4,840 
3,200 

::29,993 

90,838 
1,317 

650 
76 

671 
178 

1,820 
17,346 
11,158 
2,291 

2,898 
19,308 

250 
3,103 
2,041 

775 
3,470 

4,404 
162,594 

4,372,615 

834,518 

(611,000) 

(611,000) 

223,518 

2,861,449 

3,084,967 

64 

ACTUAL 

172,689 
13,574 

73,230 
6,372 
5,369 

271,234 

106, S26 
1,075 

449 
73 

416 
204 
359 

1,100 
21,6ll 
14,311 

4,293 

6,757 
15,773 

250 
3,652 

314 

1,451 
3,470 
l, 096 
7,046 

190,626 

4,461,568 

916,815 

(611,000} 

(611,000) 

305,815 

3,097,535 

3,403,350 

VhRIANCE 
WITH FIN.r..L 

BUDGET 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE} 

:::!4, 181 
2,094 

11,265 
1,532 
2,169 

~l,241 

(16,088) 

242 
201 

3 

255 
(26) 

(359) 

720 
(4,265) 
(3,153) 
(2,002) 

(3,859) 
3,535 

(549) 
1,727 

(676) 

(1,096) 
(2,642) 

(28,032) 

{88,953) 

82,297 

82,297 

(2,861,449} 

318,387 

155,814 
19,740 
49,548 

7, 7:::!5 
1,800 

..,35, 027 

90,609 
1,196 

635 
12 

325 
599 

3 00 
1,320 

12,442 
7,066 
5,445 

553 
3,757 

11,158 
740 

2,959 
67 

607 
2,895 

142,904 

3,472,039 

833,256 

(11,953) 

(11,953) 

821,303 

2,276,232 

3,097,535 



MONTROSE RECRE.~TION DISTRICT 
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDU.uE CONSERVFSION TRUST FUND 

For the y:=ar ended December 31, 2022 with comparative actual amounts 
for the vsar e;-ided Dec.:.mber 37, 2021 

REVENUES 

Intergo\·ernmental revenues 
Interest 

EXPENDITURES 

CURRSNT: 

Consulting 
Program equipment 
Maintenance repair 
Ban): fees 

C.Il..PIT.h.L OUTL.D,.Y: 

TOT.Z...L REVSNUES 

Furniture, fb:tures and equipment 
Facility repair and development 

TOT.!!.L EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures 

NET CH..Z\.NGE IN FUND BALAJ:'.ICE 

FUND BAL.!\.NCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUl\10 :S.z,..L.ANCES - END OF YE.?I.R 

$ 

ORIGINAL 

BUDGET 

173,000 
220 

173,220 

50,000 

290,000 
350,000 

(176,780) 

(176,780) 

260,102 

$ ====8='=· ='=22== 

65 

FIN.ZU, 

BUDGET 

173,000 
2,157 

175,157 

38,000 
4,805 

" 
66,430 

168,770 
278,043 

(102,886) 

(102,886) 

260,102 

157,216 

.ZI.CTU.t\.L 

215, so: 
4,499 

220,401 

36,000 
4,805 

57,906 
3$ 

65,505 
110,864 
275,118 

(54,717) 

(54,717) 

332,882 

278,765 

V.z.F..I.:u-TCE 

w:::TH FIN.z•.L 

BUDGET 
POSITIVE 

{NES.D,.TIVE) 

42,902 
2,342 

45,244 

2,000 

57,906 
2,925 

43,169 

48,169 

72,780 

120,949 

2027 

l'.CTUP.L 

191,364 
721 

191,485 

12,000 
22,550 

68,035 
102,585 

88,900 

38,900 

243,982 

332,882 



C, 
C, 

MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITY - NET PENSION LIABILITY 

For tl1e year ended December :; 1, :.w:J.2 

EMPLOYER 

PROPORTION 

MEASUREMENT DATE OF NPL 

December 31, 2015 0.14830% 

December 31 , 2016 0 .15178°~ 

December 31 , 2017 0.23445% 

December 31, 2018 0.25709% 

December 31, 2019 0.25648% 

December 31, 2020 0.20698% 

December 31, 2021 0.23012% 

December 31, 2022 0.25613% 

$ 

EMPLOYER 

PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE OF NPL 

1,663,683 

2,049,511 

1,963,812 

2,862,559 

3,224,496 

4,303,122 

4,114,398 

6,879,513 

EMPLOYER 

COVERE:D 

PAYROLL 

807,596 

914,757 

1,455,924 

1,686,251 

1,846,920 

1,534,331 

1,782,888 

2,158,213 

EMPLOYER 

PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE OF NPL AS A 

PERCE:NTAGE OF 

COVERED PAYROLL 

202'!; 

224% 

135% 

170% 

17'±% 

280% 

231% 

319% 

PEHSIOl"l PLAN'S 

FIDUCIARY 

NE!T POSITION AS 

/\ PEP.<:ENTAGE 

OF TOTAL 

PENSION LIABILITY 

76. 9% 

73.6% 

79. 4% 

76.0% 

86. 3% 

90. 9% 

101. 5% 

83.08% 



a, .... 

MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITY - EMPLOYER PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 

REQUIRED 

E:MPLOYER 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED CONTRIBUTION 

December 31, 2015 $ 110,814 

December 31, 2016 125,322 

December 31, 2017 199,554 

December 31, 2018 226,630 

Decembet- 31, 2019 253,156 

December 31, 2020 210,318 

December 31, 2021 261,295 

December 31, 2022 312,862 

EMPLOYER 

CONTRIBUTIONS 

RECOGNIZED 

BY THE PLAN 

106,797 

116,651 

187,539 

213,818 

223,960 

189,935 

226,022 

282,265 

CONTRIBUTIONS AS 

A PERCENTAGE: 

EMPLOYER OF EMPLOYER 

DIFFERENCE COVERED PAYROLL COVERED PAYROLL 

4,017 807,596 13.77.'l;: 

8,671 914,757 13.70% 

12,015 1,455,924 13.71% 

12,812 1,686,251 13. tJ4% 

29,196 1,849,920 13 :i;,n 

20,383 1,531,331 13. 71% 

35,273 1,782,888 14.66% 

30,597 2,158,213 14. SU% 



"' 00 

MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITY - NET OPEB LIABILITY 

For the }:'._ear ended December :.n, 2022 

MEASUREMENT DATE 

December 31, 

December 31, 

December 31, 

December 31, 

December 31, 

December 31, 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020 

2021 

2022 

EMPLOYER 

PROPORTION OF 

NET OPEB LIABIT~ITY 

0.01822% 

0.01994% 

0.01926% 

0.01544% 

0.01754% 

0.02033% 

$ 

EMPLOYER 

PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE OF NET 

OPEB LIABILITY 

236,754 

259,108 

262,050 

408,736 

559,106 

574,695 

EMPLOYER 

COVERED 

PAYROLL 

1,455,924 

1,686,251 

1,849,920 

1,534,331 

1,782,888 

2,158,213 

EMPLOYER 

PROPORTIONATE 

SHARE OF NET OPES 

LIABILITY AS A 

PERCENTAGE OF 

COVERED PAYP.OLL 

16.26% 

15.37% 

14.17% 

26.64% 

31.36% 

26.86% 

OPES PLAN'S 

FIDUf:I/\RY 

NET POSITION AS 

A PERCEIJTAGE 

OF TOTAL 

OPEB LIABILITY 

17.53% 

17. 03% 

24.49% 

32.78% 

39.40% 

38.73% 



0, 
<O 

MONTROSE RECREATION DI~r~~cr 

SCHEDULE OF ACTIVITY - EMPLOYER OPEB CONTRIBUTIONS 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 

REQUIRED 

EMPLOYER 

FISCAL YEAR ENDED CONTRIBUTION 

December 31, 2017 $ 15,086 

December 31, 2018 17,200 

December 31, 2019 17,GGS 

December 31, 2020 14,561 

December 31, 2021 17,129 

December 31, 2022 21,039 

EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS AS 

CONTRIBUTIONS A PERCENTAGE 

RECOGNIZED EMPLOYER OF EMPLOYER 

BY THE PLAN DIFFERENCE COVERED PAYROLL COVERIW PJ\YROT~L 

13,963 1,123 1,455,924 1.04% 

15,919 1,281 1,686,251 1.02% 

17,665 1,731,839 1. 02% 

14,561 1,427,528 1.02% 

17,129 1,679,266 1.02% 

21,039 2,062,647 1.02% 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



..._, 
0 

MONTROSE RECREATION DISTRICT 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - SALES TAX FUND 
For the year ended December 31, 2022 with comparative a~tual amounts 
for the year ended December 31, 2021 

REVENUES 
Intergovernmental revenues 
Interest 

EXPENDITURES 
CURRENT, 

Bank fees 
DEBT SERVICE, 
Principal 
Interest 

TOTAL REVENUES 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues over expenditures 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BALANCE - BEGINNING OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCES - END OF YEAR 

ORIGINAL FINAL 
BUDGET BUDGET 

$ 2,376,792 2,569,670 
1,000 20,000 

2,377_,792 2,589,670 

2,000 2,000 

1,908,625 1,908,625 

1,910,625 1,910,625 

467,167 679~ 

467,167 679,045 

3,864,480 3,864,480 

$ 4,331,647 4,543,525 

2022 

ACTUAL 

2,634,532 
92,592 

_ __2,_ 727,124 

2,000 

830,000 
1,078,625 
1,910,625 

816,499 

816,499 

3,980,614 

4,797,113 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINAL 

BUDGET 
POSITIVE 

(NEGATIVE) 

64,862 
72,592 

13 7 ~ 

1,078,625 

(1,078,625) 

137,454 

137,454 

116!_134 

253,588 

2021 

ACTUAL 

2,3815,625 
46,427 

2,432,052 

2,000 

800,000 
1,110,625 
1,_9_12__, 625 

519!_427 

519,427 

3,461,187 

3,980,614 



MONTROSE P.ECREAT~OKDISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF F.E\'ENUES, E}:PENDITURES h..!ID CH_.:.JJGES IN FUND B]'.L."'.HCES - BV'DGET AND ACTIJAL 
O,.PITAL IMP?.OV::::MEN'T FUND 

F~r the year em:ieci. December 31, :::o:::::: with compa:::ative actual amount:.s 
for t;he veal· ended December 31. :::0:::1 

F.Ei'ENUES 

Intergovernmental re\"enues 
Donations 

OF.IGIRtu... 

31.lDGET 

Interest 260 

EXPENDITLl?.ES 
CURP.ENT, 

Consulting 
Maintenance repairs 
Banl: charges 

CAPITJ-.L OUT!J-.Y, 

Furniture, fixtures -and equipment 
Facility repair and de·,·elopment 

Excess (deficiency) of 
revenues O\·er e,:penditures 

OTHEP. FINJ..HCING 

SOURCES IUSESl 

Transfers in 

TOT.L.L REVEl<i.lES 

TOTAL E}:?ENDITUP;ES 

TOT>-.L OTHER FINJ.J<CING 
SOURCES [USES) 

NET C"t'.ANGE IN FUND BAIJ:.lJCE 

. FUlID BJ..Lh.."ICE BEGINNING 0:o" YEAR 

FUND 3A!,.t,.UCES EI1D OF YE1.P. 

260 

301. 1:12 
301, 612 

[301,552) 

302,000 

30.'.!,000 

HS 

72, B32 

73.::60 

71 

Fill'AL 

B~ET 

.:s, 000 

B, 000 
450 

53. 450 

.:1, 2'<3 

" 
98,000 

273,422 

..12,703 

[359,253) 

611,000 

611,000 

.'.!51, 747 

7.'.!. 832 

324,579 

.!..CT"Ui-.L 

57,177 

742 

57, !:'l!:' 

67,401 

39,590 

" 
100,380 

219, 6S!:' 

4.'.!7, .'.!68 

(369,349) 

611,000 

611,000 

2'<1, 651 

15,159 

256,810 

W,F.I..WCE 

!·!ITH FIN.I,,L 

BUDGET 

PDSITI\'E 
(l;rEGJ..TZVEl 

126,lSC) 
139,590) 

!2, 3801 
53, 5'5"3 

(H,565) 

(10,096) 

(10,09€) 

(57,673) 

(67,769) 

.to.C'l'UAL 

30,000 

30 136 

-;1, 67.'.! 

9'<, 136 
17.;, 270 

340, ::so 

(310,144) 

11,!:'53 

11,953 

(296,ln) 

313,350 

15,159 



MONTROSE RECRE-1!.TION DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF REVENtTES, E}:PENDITUP..ES AND CHANGES IN FUND 3.Il..I.,ANCES - BUDGET .!.J',i"'D ACTUP.L - C.!>PIT.!l.L RESERVE FUND 
For the year ended December 31, ::::o:::::::: 1..-ith comparative actual amounts 

for the vear ended December 31, ::::0::::1 

REVENIJES 
Interest 
Intergovernmental revenue 
Donation 

EXPENDITURES 

E~:cess [deficiency) of 
!:"evenues over e~:penditures 

TOTAL REVENUES 

TOT.L.L Ei:PENDITURES 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 

FUND BP.LANCE BEGI!l.'!HNG OF YEAR 

FUND BALANCE END OF YEAR 

ORIGINAL 
BUDGET 

4:;4 

424 

424 

792,377 

792,801 

72 

VARIANCE 
WITH FINP.L 

3UDGET 
FINAL POSITIVE 

BUDGET ACTU.:·.L (NEGATIVE) 

4,800 12,776 7, :'76 
4,000 (4,000) 

4,000 4,000 
S, SOD 16,776 7,976 

8,800 16,776 7,976 

8,800 16,776 7,976 

792,377 728,391 (63,986) 

S01,177 745,167 (56,010) 

ACTU~.L 

34;! 

349 

34. 9 

349 

7::::8, 042 

7::::8,391 



 

Page | 

1 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT, September 2023 

Finance 
There is no sales tax update since June, as the SUET Report runs 2 months behind actual date. (Sales and Use Tax is only 
reported, as of August, through June.)  
With the August receipt of the Conservation Trust (CO Lottery) of $44,124, we surpassed the budgeted amount of 
$182,163 for the year, putting us at 103% revenue collected by the end of the eigth month (total for YTD collected is 
$187,011). As with all the surplus revenues, the Board will see those as year end 2023 / start 2024 appropriations. 
Unless they also result in significant expense correlations, a supplemental budget will not likely be needed. Rather, staff 
will adjust the amount dedicated to specific reserve, and future capital, items.  
 
Human Resources 
Recruitments 
There is still currently an opening for a Recreation Leader – Field House (position finally filled, as of 9/08!), as well as for 
Head Guard (3/4 time). Otherwise another custodian, and maintenance tech, and a number of other part time jobs. 
Specific to aquatics, currently 10 individuals, many of them adults, are enrolled in the LGT class upcoming at month’s 
end September. The plan is to use the Pool Initiatives Grant (from the State) to back-pay those individuals for training 
should they successfully pass the class and be hired. We do need to further broadcast this deviation from our normal 
operations, which could help give a greater boost and provide a little extra incentive to folks considering coming to work 
for us. Staff is planning then for the pools to be better staffed and scheduled to resume “normal”/”regular” full day 
operations by October 2nd.  
  
Staffing Plan and Compensation Analysis the benchmark salary survey is underway, with results due to us by the end of 
the week 9/11. From there, we will review the full scope of the job and understand initial findings, current gaps, and 
develop a final plan to close the project. As a separate yet related project, job descriptions of ALL positions (FT and PT) 
are undergoing reformatting and rewriting. Once Lisa and Mari rewrite these, they will be vetted among supervisors and 
then to subordinate and incumbent staff before being finalized by the end of 2023.  
 
Special Projects – Open and underway 
Accreditation: many project documents have been prepared, including scope, timelines, responsible teammembers, and 
more; policy documents are being prepared and filed. Target goal for application is Fall, 2024 for accreditation date 
September, 2025.  
CRC Closure / annual maintenance has been completed, with many items resolved, and with more to be processed 
throughout the weeks ahead as we couldn’t get to everything. The additional curb cuts / sidewalk access points have 
been installed and painted, with Kuboski and Co. doing great work, and those are being well-used.   
 
The Residences at Dry Cedar Creek is hosting a groundbreaking event on October 10th, and have invited the MRD / CRC 
to participate and to offer information about memberships and services. We’ll plan to be there.  
 
 
Division Reports  

Admin  

We’re working on a challenging ADA ‘violation claim’. We’re confident that there have been no violations as claimed, yet 

must address the claim carefully and diligently. Mari & Bo continue to review this closely.  

Big reminder / lesson learned going into the Labor Day weekend, when I failed to notify the BOD of the upcoming press 

about aquatics, lifeguard shortage, and CRC revised pool hours. The reduced hours are intended to be temporary, with 

increased focus, training, and recruitment diligently underway. I’ve asked staff to give this their full attention and to 

update messaging often.  



 

Page | 

2 

Staff is reviewing the annual Property & Liability (P&L) Pool expenses through CO Special Districts Association (SDA). This 

is our self-insurance pool among the state’s special districts. We did a substantial reset last year, and look to continue to 

refine the plan based on trends and as makes sense for the MRD.  

Flex Rec: staff team continues to meet every other week to discuss options for operations, programs, events, and 

marketing, with great ideas that can help keep us focused on increasing services and attendance there.  

Upcoming CPRA Conference during the last week in September at Snowmass Village. Mari, Jeremy, Justin, Wade, Gene, 

Matt, and Astro are attending; Justin and Astro are presenting a session on affordability and access for all as exemplified 

by the FFAM program; Mari is presenting a (simultaneous) session on Flex Rec and using a flexible approach to service 

expansion. NRPA Conference is the second week in October in Dallas, with Mari and Jeremy both attending.  

Fitness / Outdoor Recreation – John 

In August, Miller, Gene and John assisted with the Together for Resilient Youth outdoor recreation day at Ridgway State 

Park. MRD staff brought 20 mountain bikes to the event and had about 40+ kids over the course of the morning 

participate in an easy trail ride. Most kids had never been on a dirt trail before. Flex Rec staff instructors also held a 

meeting to streamline classes at Flex Rec ensuring that classes are complementary to each other and not overusing 

muscles and muscle groups. So far, feedback on the new class structure has been very positive. John and Gene also  

had numerous kids utilize the pop-up-parkour equipment at youth appreciation day and were able to get several new 

families to enroll kids in the September parkour classes. John also met with Mallory from Vista Charter School and was 

able to finalize details for the Vista weights/PE class that will be taking place at Flex Rec twice a week beginning in 

September and running through the rest of the school year. Fitness and other staff also completed a large amount of 

cleaning, maintaining, and rearranging of fitness equipment during the annual shutdown despite having fewerpart-time 

staff members participate as previous years. 

AQUATICS – Liz  

August was a full and busy month for Aquatics. Summer Swim lessons ended on August 3rd. A 3-day intensive lifeguard 

class was held August 9-11. On Youth Appreciation Day, we saw the largest number of participants at the CRC, topping 

almost 200 in the pool at one point. The Field House YAD participation numbers were a bit down, with 150 participants. 

We had our largest turnout for Dog Days of Summer with 110 2-legged friends and 85 4-legged friends in 3 hours. Chow 

Down pet supplies donated 90 gift bags filled with goodies. We collected $600 to send to the Montrose Animal 

Protection Agency for its spay and neuter program. In addition an estimated $200 in cash/food/toy donations went to 

the Montrose Animal Shelter. Immediately following YAD(Sat) and Dog Days of Summer(Sun). Total August outdoor pool 

attendance was 1,400, averaging 466 participants per week. Aquatic staff members contributed 110 hours of labor 

intensive work during the shutdown of the pools. This included a Water Fitness Instructor, a Swim Instructor and several 

Lifeguards. A big shout out goes to these folks as well as the amazing Maintenance/Custodial team we worked 

alongside. 

Over the Summer, we trained/certified/promoted 3 of our aides to Water Safety Instructors, and 4 aides were certified 

to become new Lifeguards.  

 

 



 

Page | 

3 

YOUTH – Abby 
August was a prep month for youth programs as we are preparing for fall soccer. It's our "summer break" as I like to 
think of it as we have no substantial youth sports going. We did have an intro to soccer over at the Field House for 3 & 4 
year olds that runs for three classes (45 min each) which was another full class of 15 kids! We also ran our first intro to 
pickleball clinic. That had 6 kids and was a ton of fun! I think we will continue to offer that and try to increase the ages a 
bit to get more interest.  

We also have been busy getting ready for fall soccer so creating all the rosters, practice schedules, getting the fields 

ready for the first day of practices, so putting the nets on the goals, painting the fields, making our coaches equipment 

bags. A lot of hands-on since our parks team is over at CRC for closure so having to make do with helping out over there 

and assisting with tasks that we usually don't have to do. Busy busy!  

YOUTH ENRICHMENT - Jeremy 
Middle School After School program through DMEA grant ($10,000) is beginning at the CRC in October and runs through 
December school term. The program runs 4 days per week and has a capacity of 14 kids per day. We are in process of 
recruiting and assigning staff.  
 
FACILITIES OPERATIONS – Justin  
Unfortunately we are experiencing a fair amount of turnover in the CSR Staff. Amy Russell's last day was August 9 and 
Janel Culver's last day will be Sept. 9. Debbie Wildly is also leaving at the end of the month. All 3 are moving on to FT 
positions and we wish them the best. The good news is that Laysa Quijano has been promoted to lead CSR and we have 
hired Wendy Jackson who should start in early September. We are currently looking for 2 more CSRs to fill in the gaps 
(those have been filled!)  

Other open positions include the full time Field House Leader position which has been open for well over 6 months. We 
do have a good candidate that we will be interviewing on Wednesday. MODs and FT staff have done an admirable job of 
covering the FH & outdoor pool this summer, but it will be imperative to have that position filled by mid 
October. (position filled!)  

Childwatch and climbing wall have both recently filled open positions and are excited with the new team members.  

We finished taking responses for the biannual CRC survey in early August. Department staff will be asked to find the 3 
most recurring themes or areas for improvement from the data. From that we will come up with action steps to address 
the themes. Here is the basic summary, thus far. More than 415 responses were recorded. Justin has highlights of the 
results, and can provide a greater overview. Overall, the highlights include:  

58% of the respondents use the CRC more than 10 times per month, with 35.1% of those using the facility MORE 
than 12 times each month; 47.1% of the respondents are annual pass holders, 11.5% are day pass purchasers, and 32.3% 
are Renew Active/Silver Sneakers users; 36 specific staff members received at least one (1) shout out / KUDO for 
exceptional service, MANY had multiples, and three (3) employee groups received KUDOS; lap pool ranked highest 
quality of the three pools, at 85%[i] v. good to exceptional. The highest performing staff / functional group was the Front 
Desk, with 88%  staff rating and 86% service rating, although respondents pointed out that communications among staff 
and facility through the front desk can improve (people want absolute one-stop info); ALL staff groups by individual 
function (front desk, aquatics, wall, fitness) achieved a minimum 82% rating; and quality of ALL areas achieved a 
minimum of 81%. CRC Safety received the highest marks of any other category, at 89.3% v. good to exceptional. Overall 
quality of the CRC achieved 85% v. good – exceptional. The lowest ratings and most critical comments were given to: the 
quality of the wellness pool at 80% (many people believe it is a Jacuzzi and believe the water isn’t hot enough and don’t 
like that children (both) DO and ARE NOT allowed to play in it); the climbing wall (routes are not complex / too complex, 
too many children); facility overall and locker room cleanliness (71.7% and 76.3% respectively); quality of fitness classes 
(77.2%); communication (info exchange about some specific closures, maintenance, general knowledge); affordability 
(75%). NUMEROUS comments were around wanting more access to children and directly conflicting wanting more 
access for adults only.  



 

Page | 

4 

Numbers-wise the CRC had a very strong summer. There were 76,000+ visits from June to late August bringing in 
$108,000 in day pass revenue with an average of 71.5 paid guests per hour of operation. YTD the CRC is 6% above our 
pre-covid average for visits and 16% ahead of pre covid daily revenues.  

The Field House & Outdoor pool had a steady summer with 6,437 daily visits and $18,739 in day pass revenue. 
Additionally there were 27 private parties bringing in an additional $6,857 in revenue.  

Membership sales continue to be strong as we added 44 members in August for a total of 7,319 total members. 

Facility staff is definitely looking forward to a well earned "break" with the annual shutdown. Staff will still be working 
very hard, but being able to focus on building without having to worry about customer service as much is a good 
opportunity to reset and refocus on some long term projects. 

GRANTS & DATA METRICS – Astro 

August Metrics 
Passes Held: 7,275 in August 2023 up from  7,082 in July 2022 ; compared to  in 6,208 in August of 2022 

Avg Weekly Revenue Day Pass: $5,590 in August 2023 (excluding closure) down from  $9,781 in July 2023; compared to 

$6,213 in August 2022. There is an average drop from July to August due to the pool being shut down the week before 

complete closure (pool for 2 weeks, dry side for only 1 week).   

Weekly visits: 16,213 in August 2023 compared to 26,814 in July 2023; compared to 15,524 in August of 2022. 

People per hour: 66.2 in August 2023 down from 79 in July 2023 ; compared to 63.6 in August 2022  

Child Watch Visits: 301 in August 2023  from 437 in July 2023; compared to 341 in August of 2022 

Child Watch annual passes: 66 in August 2023 compared to 76 in July 2023; compared to 67 in August 2022 

Climber certifications: 259 in August 2023 compared to 254 in July 2023; compared to 151 in August 2022  

CRC rental: $1,285 in August 2023 compared to $1,381 in July 2023; compared to $1,404 in August of 2022  

FH rental: $3,060 in August 2023 compared to $5,461 in July 2023; compared to $3,340 in August of 2022.  

Scholarships: $1,507 given out in August  2023 in 55 disbursements; compared to $1,724 in August of 2022. 

FLEX REC: Dual Unlimited: 6; Unlimited 5; Limited: 13 (+1); 3 month: 13 (-1); Maslow: 1  

Total paid memberships: 38 (+/- (delta) = 0) 

punch pass: 8   

Movement Medicine: August revenue share to MRD $306; total to date $1,471 
 
 

 

 

 



 

Page | 

5 

Data and eval:  

Completed final draft of Coordinator goals and objectives and sent to senior leadership for approval. This is an important 

step to developing a more comprehensive, intentional and robust program plan, and is a CAPRA requirement.  

Worked with Adult programs to revise registration forms to start collecting demographic data on adult sports 

participants.  

Added ethnicity question to all online registrations and working with CSR team on how to implement, refining questions 

and updating it to existing households (those already in the database). 

Continued work on updating quality surveys across all MRD services. Summary and recommendations will be presented 

to admin team in Sept.   

Grants:  

Notice CHFA 5k grant for FFAM declined. No grants pending on the FFAM program. 2/3 of its 15k have been spent.  

Only pending grant is through State Internet Portal. Will identify a grant to apply for in September.  (update: DNR) 

Beginning to research and explore large scale grants for future capital projects by working with Region 10 grant 
navigators.  

Explored Energy Contract Performance program offered from CO  State Energy office with initial calls to the State and 
then the City of Durango (which has gone through this program). Will continue looking for energy related grants to help 
with energy audit costs.  

Working with Hispanic Advocacy Project to identify future areas of collaboration. Multiple program possibilities were 
identified, including for seniors and a violence prevention program for women.  

Adults – Matt 
August was filled with playoffs and new registrations. The new softball program was filled for the men’s division and I 

actually added an extra team and have teams on a waitlist if any team backs out. We ended up a little short on the coed 

league but that may be in part to Delta having a program as well. 

It was sad as I had to turn a few teams away this season for kickball and softball as they tried to register over a week 

after the deadline and all schedules had been emailed and published. It would have been nice to have a couple more 

teams, but I did not think it was fair to all of the other teams that registered on time to have their schedules completely 

change for game times and field locations.  

Overall, the feedback that I have gotten from participants is that they have really enjoyed the programs so far. A few of 

them have even told me that they will be branching out and try some of the other sports programs that we offer that 

they do not normally participate in.  

Jarrod and I continue to look at other program offerings that we feel could contribute to the overall adult programs and 

how to work within the 50+ groups to possibly integrate them together.  

Astro and I worked together to add demographic data points to my online player release/roster forms so we will see 

how that goes with all of the participants and see how that will help us with programming and possible grants in the 

future.  

 
END – see 50+ separate / next 



50+ Report – August 2023 
Cindy Marino 

Premier World Discovery 
The Majestic Canadian Rockies – August 6 – 11, 2023 
We had 8 people participate in a 6 day, 5 night tour to Banff, Canada.  The tour included Yoho 
National Park, Chateau Lake Louise, Emerald Lake, the Icefield Explorer Ride across the 
Athabasca Glacier, Peyto Lake, Moraine Lake, Mt Rundle Falls, etc… 

I received positive feedback from the travelers. The tour company did a great job. They enjoyed 
their hotel, had a great tour guide and good itinerary.  

There were 2 others who planned to go on the tour. One of our female passengers passed out 
on the plane while waiting for take-off. She has a history of some medical issues. She went to 
Urgent Care in Grand Junction and was advised not to fly. She and her significant other had 
travel insurance.  

MRD provided transportation to and from the airport. The travel company reimbursed us for 
busing the participants. They do this when there are at least 10 travelers. We picked up 
passengers from their homes so that they didn’t have to leave their cars parked unsecured for 6 
days. We left Montrose at 4:30 am to get to the airport 2 hours ahead of their 7:57 flight.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cowboy Poetry 
Sixty three people attended a presentation by Terry Nash and Peggy Malone. They are paid 
performers who came to the Senior Center as part of the Blue Sage Center for the Arts Next50 
Grant. Terry told stories through poetry and Peggy played the guitar and sang. People loved it! 

 

Celebration of Life 
We had a celebration of life for one of the “regulars” in the 50+ trips program. Marty Mims 
attended many, many tours throughout the years. She finally had to retire from her job because 
it was interfering with her trips! She especially loved hiking. She was part of the 20 or so 
regulars who started hiking and doing activities together outside of the 50+ program. She was a 
great hostess, she gave me many ideas for tours, and she was a delightful person in every way. 
She will be missed. 

Contributing to Local Economy 
We took a couple of local tours in Montrose in August. We toured with the Tortoise and the 
Hare, an exotic pet shop in downtown Montrose. We also toured with Geyser systems. They 
manufacture a unit that allows you to shower in .8 gallons of water. We eat out during these 
tours and some participants make purchases.  

 

 

  
  

 

 

 



 

 

New Offering 
I had a recommendation to do a local walk and dinner out. In August, we had dinner at Trattoria Di Sofia 
and then took a 2 mile walk along the river trail. I shuttled the bus to Riverbottom Park so that we could 
walk there after dinner. There were 9 participants. I am offering this activity once a month through 
November at different locations. 

 

Redstone Castle Tours 
We took 2 groups to tour the Redstone Castle. They limit each tour to 12 people. The tour was originally 
scheduled for October and then the group at the castle decided to end tours for 2023 in August. I 
rescheduled people in order to get them on a tour this year.  

Pickin’ in the Park – Paonia 
This was our first year doing this event. There was rain from tropical storm Harold in our area which 
caused the event to be moved indoors to the local Paradise Theater. It was tight but everyone had a 
great time.  

 



MRD  EMPLOYEE
NEWSLETTER

 SEPTEMBER 2023

INSIDE THIS
EDITION

Staff News 

Employee of the Month

Highlight

Program/Event Highlight   

Data Corner

MRD News

Employee highlight 
 

Newsletter Quiz: Email your answers

to Debby as soon as you can, whoever

answer all questions correctly, and

first, gets an awesome prize!

What competition did Candace win?
How many hot dogs did we give out at YAD?
Who helped run the dunk tank?
Who was the part time staff of the month?  What is her role?
What is one thing Julie is known for according to this newsletter?
How many patron surveys have been completed so far?
What is one position we are hiring for?

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.



 

Youth Appreciation Day a
Success Again!

162 youth admissions to the CRC 
112 youth admissions to the FH
Estimated 1200 participants at RecFest & Kiddie Carnival
Over 20 vendors
Sponsors included: Alpine Bank, City of Montrose, Montrose Community Foundation, Flower Motor and
Rotary
12 other businesses were involved 
1000 hot dogs we given out 
750 reusable water bottles given out
500 pancakes at the FH pancake breakfast were enjoyed
250 lbs of watermelon were consumed

The annual YAD was held August 19 this year and as always was a resounding success!  
Here are some of the stats:



STAFF NEWS

September Staff Birthday : 
Miguel Lopez, 24th
Dwain Sherriff, 10th

September Work Anniversaries:
Astro Ball, 1 year
Wade Ploussard, 16 years
Mari Steinbach, 4 years

 Awards:
Core staff of the month:  Julie L
Part time staff of the month: Alex S

Hiring:
We are hiring several positions,
including: 
Facility Leader Field House  FT
Lead Lifeguard PT
Fitness: Instructors, Coaches, Personal Trainers
Parkour Instructor PT
Head Lifeguard FT
Lifeguard PT
Child Watch PT
Climbing Wall Attendant PT
Custodian Attendant PT
CSR PT
Maintenance Technician FT
Parks Maintenance Supervisor FT
Program Assistant enrichment 
Manager on Duty PT
Middle School After School Program Aide PT
Middle School After School Program Leader PT
Sports Official/Scorekeeper PT
Swim Instructor PT

Focus On: Employee of the Month, Julie Laube 

Data Corner
The CRC had nearly 2000 visits from non-residents in

the month of July. The CRC is clearly a destination

for people visiting the area.

The Field House & outdoor pool have continued a

strong year running 17% above average in terms of

daily visits and rental revenue. 

The bi-annual patron survey was sent out in mid July.

As of August 1st there were 413 completed surveys. 

Overall memberships and sales have continued to

steadily increase. Since June 1 we have added nearly

190 members and now have 7,275 total members.

There are an additional 1,572 active punch passes.

Scholarships: $1,300 given out in July in 31

disbursements; $960 in July of 2022.

Congratulations to Candace

Delgado! 

 Candace competed in Musclemania Colorado, a natural
bodybuilding federation in August. She won Figure overall and
first place in Physique as well. She beat two pros in the figure
division and earned her title as a natural professional
bodybuilder. Way to represent Candace!!

Julie has worked at the MRD for 6 years, 5 in her current position as Lead CSR.  
She enjoys making people's day, bringing a smile to their face by greeting them
with a smile as well as wearing costumes on each and every holiday!  The most
challenging part of her job, she states, is keeping up the constant high level of
energy that the job requires.  Her goals for the next year are to do some cross
training with the other CSRs and training them to understand the workings of
Rec Trac, understanding the reasons for tracking refunds and payments, etc.  In
her off time, she enjoys all outdoor activities!  Especially road biking and cross
country skiing.  She and her husband also do Triathlons. She is truly living the
MRD lifestyle.  Her nomination states "Julie has dealt with some challenging
situations of late, and always rises to meet those challenges with the best and
most appropriate responses. She assuredly manages dozens, if not hundreds of
micro-situations each month so efficiently that they never get further than the
front desk. She coaches her staff to improve their skills in this regard, too, so
that problems and questions are solved at any shift without unnecessary delays.
She knows exactly when and how to involve administration with certain
situations, providing the right level of background information to prepare and
inform Admin's response. Julie has been incredibly helpful of late (and always)
training programmers new and old to properly input items into RT, improve their
knowledge on waitlisting and reporting functions, and adding demographic
information seamlessly into the household information collected upon
registration. Julie is known for her consistent friendly, professional, courteous,
unflappable nature, and of course her smile and unmistakably joyous laugh. Her
work remains top notch, and it's been very noticeable of late." Thank you Julie!

               



Comprehensive compensation data 
provides park and recreation agency 
leaders with guidance on how to attract 
the best candidates for their staff. This 
data also can provide park and recreation 
professionals with insights into salary and 
benefits offered by potential employers. 
To gather that data, the National 
Recreation and Park Association (NRPA) 
research team sent a 43-question survey 
in March 2023 to produce the salary data 
of 13 positions at park and recreation 
agencies and general information about 
benefits and salary policies. The 
responses from leaders of more than 400 
park and recreation agencies across the 
United States are the basis of this report. 

The 2023 NRPA Park and Recreation Salary Survey Report features detailed base 
salary and bonus data for 13 typical park and recreation agency positions: 

• Park and Recreation Agency Director (or Executive Director or Superintendent) 
• Planning Director (or Superintendent) 
• Director of Finance (or Administrative Director or Business Manager) 
• Recreation Director (or Recreation Superintendent or Assistant Director — 

Recreation) 
• Park Operations Director (or Maintenance Director or Maintenance 

Superintendent) 
• Park Operations (or Maintenance Foreman) 
• Facilities Manager 
• Athletics Supervisor (or Athletics Manager) 
• Aquatics Supervisor (or Aquatics Manager) 
• Recreation Programs Coordinator (or Recreations Programs Manager) 
• Marketing and Communications Director (or Manager) *New position to this 

report in 2023 
• Fitness Center Manager *New position to this report in 2023 
• Administrative Assistant *New position to this report in 2023 



 



 

Notice of Regular Meeting of the 
Montrose Recreation District (MRD) Board of Directors 

Thursday, August 27 at 11:30am  
Field House, 25 Colorado Avenue 

Montrose CO 81401 
 

MINUTES 
 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call – meeting was called to order at 11:35am.  Barb Sharrow, Alli Howe Suzi King, Megan 

Maddy, Ken Otto, Christina Files and Paul Wiesner were present.  

II. Open Forum: Call for Public Comment (limit of 3 minutes per person) – there was no public comment 

III. Staff Recognition: 
a. Anniversaries:  Justin Mashburn 18 years, Melissa Lords 14 years  
b. New Employee Introduction/Announcement: Laysa Quijano, Lead Customer Service Representative;  

Dwain Sherriff, Maintenance Supervisor - Parks 
c. Employee Awards:  

i. Core Staff of the Month – Julie Laube 
ii. PT Staff of the Month – Alex Sutton 

 
IV. Resolution 2023 – 5 Resolution to Adopt the ADA Notice  - 

a. Jeremy reported that the MRD has developed an ADA Notice that will be posted on our website as well as in 
one activity guide a year.  The notice states the intent to meet accommodation requests that come before us.  
It also discusses the ways community members can request accommodations. Director Alli asked if we are 
prepared to provide accommodations if requested.  Jeremy responded that the MRD has one week to 
accommodate reasonable requests, as detailed in the document. Director Suzi stated that the school district 
has some resources for accommodations that the MRD may access. Director Barb asked if the MRD has 
received any requests. Jeremy said there was an individual who indirectly asked for accommodation recently 
but did not say what the accommodation was that was requested.  This request is being researched. Director 
Alli asked if there may be any expense related to providing accommodations.  Jeremy stated that there may 
be minimal cost associated with requests but there is money in the budget for this. Director Alli made a 
motion to adopt Resolution 2023-5 and Barb seconded the motion.  The motion passed unanimously.  

 
V. Special Projects Update 

a. Status of Classification and Compensation Plan project  

i. ED Mari stated that a contractor has been hired to assess wages and job descriptions.  

ii. Lisa, HR Generalist, stated that full time staff job descriptions are being looked at by the contractor 
as well as the organization chart, which was phase 1 of the project.  Phase 2 will consist of 
evaluating jobs and providing a wage range for those specific jobs.  ED Mari stated that the admin 
staff will then review the budget taking into consideration the recommended wage ranges.  Director 
Suzi asked why the study was being done. Lisa stated that COLA increased every year and part time 
staff get these increases which causes compression. ED Mari stated that inconsistent job descriptions 
have been used and were developed in house.  Lisa stated that pay equity is important, so compliance 
also drives the study.   

VI. Program Status Update  
a. Youth Programs – Abby Glaysher, Miller Bowles 

i. Director Christina asked that programmers present to the board so the board can learn more about the 
individual programs. Abby and Miller presented on Youth Programs. Some new programs that are in 



process are:intro to pickleball and a trail running club for kids.  Ways this department is being 
innovative include new technology for better communication.  Abby stated that they are looking into 
an app which would serve as a tool for coordinators to communicate with coaches and parents.  The 
ref app is now being used, giving referees their assignments the abilities to log in to see. . Using 
Rectrac tp sendout mass text messages is also being considered.  The Turf Tank robot is now being 
used which is a great tool used to paint lines on the fields, which is a great time saver for staff.  Rock 
climbing, mountain biking, parkour, are all activities that are in motion.  Miller stated that many of 
the baseball rules in place were not consistent so these rules are being standardized. He is also 
developing a system where rules change as kids get more skilled so they will be able to adapt to rules 
used elsewhere. .  Some additional equipment has been ordered such as mats that serve as pitching 
mounds that are easily movable.  Coach surveys are now being done.  Some really good ideas have 
come from this survey. Abby stated that this program is typically retaining players from kindergarten 
until the 6th grade level and then they are dropping off.  Director Christina asked if kids are walking 
away from traditional sports moving to some of the newer programs.  Abby stated this happens some 
with the older kids. Miller said that team sports are typically maxed out, meaning they are typically 
full.  Abby stated that Lacrosse has been very popular with the youth and the MRD program is less 
expensive that some other areas who offer this sport.   

ii. Adult Recreation Programs will present next month.  

VII. Capital Improvement Plan Update 
a. Review discussion items from 8.22.2023 joint Growth / Finance Committee meeting  

i. The pool audit report was reviewed at the joint Growth/Finance Committee meeting.  ED Mari stated 
that staff have put together a 3 year plan that will can enable the Field House (FH) pool to stay open 
for that time period.  The CIP was reviewed and priorities were also discussed at that meeting where 
all but one board member attended. Director Ken stated that the board wants to ensure there is 
adequate funding for facilities and staff.  CIP projects that were discussed included Ute/McNeil as a 
priority, as well as the Field House and the outdoor pool.  It was also discussed how funding will be 
raised.  The board discussed if the pool at the FH will be rebuilt or if it will be moved to the CRC.  
Director Paul stated that the outdoor pool can stay open with the caveat that it needs renovations.  
Funds can be  appropriated to correct deficiencies on the outdoor pool until money is secured for a 
capital project.  Director Barbara stated that the City of Montrose is planning to remodel the River 
Bottom area and the MRD would like to move on Ute/McNeill renovations at the same time.  The 
City has slowed down a bit on their plan to master plan River Bottom. It was mentioned that the FH 
site master plan has shiftedto first priority and Ute McNeil has turned to the second priority because 
of timing The third priority is the aquatics component.  Plant operating costs exist to ensure 
maintenance at facilities and parks is being done as needed. The financing for the CIP projects was 
discussed as well.  Director Paul  noted that sales tax funds that are raised are earmarked “for capital 
improvements and facilities” according to the resolution/bond that passed in 2014. There are excess 
funds because sales tax revenues have increased. This money is in Colotrust and can be used for 
improvements. The Conservation Trust is another account and funds comes from the Colorado 
Lottery. These funds can be used for just about anything including improvements to facilities.  
Capital reserves are also available for anything but are earmarked for capital improvements.  The 
General/operating fund includes property tax income.  Some of these funds are in the Operating 
Reserve and will cover at least 90-180 days of operations if needed.  There are still excess funds in 
this account so some of this can be used for improvements/capital projects.  In short there are funds 
available that can be used for the projects discussed. Board and staff will need to have discussions 
about what our next steps are.  Director Christina also stated there was surplus revenue this year and 
last year as well.  Director Alli said the board needs to determine if they feel comfortable using these 
funds for capital improvements.  Director Christina stated that spending money on the priorities 
discussed is allowed, in her reading of the resolution. Director Paul stated that there are 2 paths, 
either the afore-mentioned funds can be used to pay off the CRC building and use mortgage savings 
to direct toward the capital projects, or use the funds directly to support these capital projects.  ED 
Mari stated that DOLA and GOGO grants will be pursued as well.  Director Alli also stated that the 
board needs to reach a consensus of how much reserve needs to be saved. Director Paul stated that 
the MRD is entering budget season so this can be discussed further.  

 



VIII. Committee Updates and Assignments 
a. Exec. Committee of Board (Board: Christina, Alli, Barb. Staff: Mari, Jeremy) – This committee met in 

August. Christina asked that any questions for Mari’s performance review process be sent to her.  She needs 
feedback by the end of next week. She will send out a summary to the board before the review.  

b. Administrative (Board: Barb, Alli. Staff Mari, Jeremy, Debby, Lisa) – This committee did not meet this 
month 

c. Foundation (Board: Megan, Barb.  Staff: Mari, Cindy) – The Foundation did not meet this month 
d. Growth (Board: Ken, Suzi.  Staff:  Mari, Jeremy, Justin, Miguel) – The joint Growth/Finance Committee 

meeting was discussed, above.    
e. Finance (Board: Paul, Alli.  Staff  Mari, Jeremy) – The Finance Committee met August 8.23.2023.  It was 

noted that as of July we are at 58% of the budget year.  Revenues are at 81% so far. It was noted that the 
recreation programs are where the biggest growth is reflected.  It was also noted that for Flex Rec there is 
consistent growth although it is small.  The hope is that once there is more development in the area, it may 
result in more members/revenue.  Director Christina asked if finance documents are on the Google Drive, 
Mari said they will be added.  There is a lag time in getting reports from the City of Montrose.  

f. MURA – Director Alli stated there was not an August meeting.   

IX. Executive Director’s Update  

a. ED Mari said the outdoor sign should be on the Flex Rec building soon. Mari said revenues have been 
increasing, part of this is because of the Weehawken programs that are held at Flex Rec. Director Ken asked 
if any other groups have approached us asking if they can use the facility.  Wade said baseball teams have 
asked if they can get some time at Flex Rec as well as an enduro training group (dirt bikes) group.  Some 
outside groups are using the community room for meetings.  

b. Mari stated a notice of claim has been given to the MRD regarding an ADA complaint and this is being 
reviewed. 

c. Youth Appreciation Day – Justin reported that the MRD gave away 1,000 hot dogs and at least 1,200 people 
attended.  More than 25 vendors attended. MADA Fest – Wade attended and handed out CRC passes and 
visited with various attendees and organizations there.  He is hoping next year we can attend as well and 
have some activities for the kids.   

 

X. Approval of BOD Meeting Minutes 
a. 07.27.2023 Regular Meeting of the Board – Director Paul moved that the minutes from the 7.27.2023 

board meeting be approved as written. Alli seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously.  

XI. Adjourn – the meeting adjourned 1:24pm.  
 

 
Next BOD Regular Meeting 
September 21 at 11:30am 

CRC, 16350 Woodgate Road, Montrose CO 81401 



 

Joint Meeting of the Growth & Finance Committees 

Tuesday, August 22nd at 11:30am   

Montrose Community Recreation Center 

16350 Woodgate Road  

Montrose CO 81401 

 

MINUTES 

 

 

I. Call to Order, Roll Call, meeting called to order at 11:30am.  Barb Sharrow, Paul Wiesner, 

Suzi King, Ken Otto, Megan Maddy.  Director Christina arrived at 12;15pm.  Staff present: 

Justin Mashburn, Miguel Lopez, Astro Ball, Mari Steinbach, Jeremy Masters, Debby 

Harrison-Zarkis, Liz Gracesun, Wade Ploussard.  

 

II. Presentation of results of Counsilman-Hunsaker summary of outdoor pool assessment, 

conducted spring/summer 2023 

a. Questions & Answers / Discussion  

i. There were no questions from the Board 

ii. Assessment was discussed. Director Suzi asked if there is a liability keeping the 

pool open, ED Mari stated yes, there are according to the assessment. Miguel 

reviewed the assessment as well as recommendations from Counsilman 

Hunsaker.  Pool repair items were presented from the report. Repairs that will be 

made in 2023 will cost $1,700. 2024 total $21,710, total for 2025, $11,500. 2026 

total cost for repairs will be $14,700. Total $49,610 over three years. ED Mari 

stated that staff believes staff can make the minor repairs listed to keep it open 

and functioning, notwithstanding further inspection failure items or new issues.  

The pool has brought in approximately $17,000 this year. The annual total 

average is about $20,000 per year. That is enough to cover approximately 80% of 

the staff costs.  This revenue excludes MRD members – which gives them CRC 

and Field House access. That accounts for 25% of visits to the FH pool.  On 

average, the outdoor pool is open about 80 days per season.  Justin stated that 

most people come to the Field House just to use the pool.  Director Suzi asked if 

the board needs to make a decision on whether the pool will close or stay open by 

making the recommended repairs. ED Mari said yes.  Director Paul asked if the 

pool is inspected. And Miguel responded that the County Health Department 

does inspect it.  Miguel stated that the largest issue that Counsilman-Hunsaker 

brought up is that the pool is not level.  ED Mari stated that she is concerned with 

the water loss.  Jeremy noted that the water, heating and treatment cost has been 

consistently budgeted for over the years.   Director Ken asked whether the 

assessor said where the water was going, Miguel said that is unknown. Director 

Suzi asked how the committee feels about maintaining the pool that we know is 

out of compliance, ethically.  ED Mari said that because of its age, the pool has 

“grandfathered” status on many of the items.  The life safety and worker issues 



are recommended to be taken care of in 2024.  ED Mari stated she thinks it is 

worth keeping the pool open while the Board works on a plan to eventually 

replace the pool.  Jeremy stated that it is a risk to keep it open. Director Paul 

suggested putting an article in the newsletter about issues with the pool, and ask 

the public what they would like to see in the future for a pool. Director Megan 

asked if the CIP reflects replacement of the pool. Mari stated that a community 

survey could be done as well as site assessments for a future pool. Director Ken 

said the Growth Committee has had these discussions as far as whether to replace 

or repair the pool.  He said the finance committee can help by giving information 

on where the MRD stands financially. Liz stated that when the CRC was built, an 

outside pool there was discussed which would be a leisure pool. Director Suzi 

stated that at the building of the CRC, the committee was assured that a pool 

would fit in the area west of the building. ED Mari said that if the pool at the FH 

was not replaced, it needs to be determined what the future of the FH should be. 

Liz was asked her opinion.  She stated that the current FH pool serves that area of 

the town and specific needs of the community well. She did say however that she 

has always envisioned the new pool being at the CRC and leisure related with 4-6 

lanes.  She stated she thinks the appropriate space for a new pool is at the CRC. 

She also stated that staff love working at the FH pool. Mari stated it revenue 

challenges could be encountered by locating the outside pool at the CRC. 

Director Paul and Director Suzi both agree that an outdoor splash pad at the CRC 

might be our best solution.  Liz stated it would be nice to have extra swim lanes 

when the inside lane pool is full.  

iii. Mari summarized next steps. 

1. Outside consultant for a pool assessment/community survey – Mari 

stated that she will reach out to other recreation agencies to see if they 

have a tool that the MRD could possibly use as well as determine what is 

trending.  Director Christina asked if a water feature is desired ed by the 

board and staff the response was yes.  Wade asked what population the 

MRD is missing.  Liz stated high school aged kids. Justin said at least ½ 

of the visitors to the FH pool are kids 6 and under with their families. 

FH, or CRC are our two options for a pool or splash pad.   

 

III. Capital Improvement Plan review  

a. Review the 2024 Capital Improvement Plan, preliminary / additions to the CIP from staff 

portion of the Growth Committee and the Plant Operations / Asset Management; discuss 

long term priorities funding needs and strategies.  

i. Jeremy reviewed the 2024 CIP Preliminary Plan as well as plant costs.  Director 

Christina asked why the Ute/McNeill improvements were on the CIP before the 

City does the assessment.  Jeremy stated this is a placeholder so this items is not 

dropped or forgotten.  Justin discussed the need for new cardio equipment at the 

CRC, which is at the end of its lifespan. This has therefore been listed on the 

CIP. The current equipment would be sold back to the manufacturer. He also 

stated that we have looked at leasing vs buying new equipment, and is under 

discussion. The recommended work on the current outdoor pool is reflected on 

the CIP.  Director Christina recognized the projects that the Board is prioritizing 

but is wanting to know what projects we can actually afford.  Mari gave an 

update on financials.  Mari stated sales tax is coming in strong, there will be a 

surplus on our budget for this year as there was for last year.  We currently have 

about $2M surplus in that fund.  In 2024 we are eligible to refinance the 

certificates of participation. The MRD also will have some additional debt 



capacity.  Mari also said that an option would be for the MRD to go back the city 

and voters to ask for additional sales tax funding – above the .3%. Mari stated 

that there must be a 3-6 month operating savings according to the board policy.  

There is enough in the General Fund balance to cover this.  Total in all fund 

balances is around $3M. Director Christina stated the priority is to keep up our 

current facilities, with the need to prioritize taking care of what we have with the 

new facilities or additions. Director Barb suggested potentially taking a longer 

time to accomplish the three prioritized projects.  She does not think pursuing 

another bond would be good timing right now.   The Committee believes that the 

Ute/McNeill project should be accomplished.  This will be a partnership project 

with the City of Montrose. The group reaffirmed that then the Field House 

project is the second priority.  The pool moves to priority #3. Other projects not 

funded include trails.   

 

IV. Define next Action Steps, Priorities  

a. The committee will recommend to the board at Thursday’s meeting the plan presented by 

staff to effect the three-year repair plan.   

b. Plant operations should be a priority and should be about 1.5% increasing to 2% 

according to Director Paul.  (is currently 1%). Director Ken would like to see a 10 year 

repair plan to ensure there is money in the budget to cover that.  

 

 

V. Adjourn – the meeting was adjourned at 1:32. 

 

 

 


	20230921 Board Agenda
	Notice of Regular Meeting of the
	Next BOD Regular Meeting

	Montrose Recreation District 2022 audit report
	ED September
	50+ ReportAugust 2023
	September Employee Newsletter
	NRPA Comprehensive compensation data
	20230824 BOD Meeting Minutes
	Notice of Regular Meeting of the
	Next BOD Regular Meeting

	20230822 Growth & Finance Committee Minutes

